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Chair's Report
2019/20 covers the second year of our Stratégic Plan and a time when many of the changes detalled in the plan

where putin to place. It was a year where we managed several senfor staff changes.and towards the end of the

year: the.start-of the Covid 19 Pandemic.

Through the outstanding generoslty as always, of our donors, both Individuals and corparates we were able to
create 9 hew funds and have managed 2 trust fund transfers, all adding to our fund portfollo during the year.
We now have 47 Endowrient Funds, which aré lrivested with the CCLA and-41 flow-through funds which are
speiit within a specified time frame. Additlonally, as we ended the financial year, wé are in the process of
completlng a further large fund which would enable slgnlflcant additional support 10 the séctor.

This year, thanks to that generosity, we were able to give more than £2:4m In support of the Voluntary,
Community and Cultural Sector (VCCS), supporting 130 organlsations, impacting on an -estimated 35,000

beneficiarles. -

we contlnue to be incredibly proud that we have been ableto support S0 many organlsatlons anid to be part of
dellverlng life. changlng and life- enhanclng projects to thousands on Ml( cltlzens across the whole borough

A part of ouf strategic re- -focus we undertook the first part of our Governance review, whlch has seen changes
In ‘olir comimittee structire andl with the Introduction of 4 Philanthropy : and Grant Commlttee to ovérsee and
supportour philanthiropic work, duringthe year we agreed a specific Philanthropy strategy. The thiee maln afeas

of focus-are:

. Diversify and grow our phllanthropy programme
0. Enable ‘more lmpactful grant-giving
¢ Work collaboratlvely across the organlzatlon to maiimize philanthiropy - opporturilties, ensure

compliance & measure our Impact

Thedelivery plan assoclated with this strategy focuses on building philanthropy across our borough, Increasing
the funding we have available-and making sure we are support ali ‘our commiunities.

Also, during the year, we adapted a specific Property strategy which also has three main areas-of focus:

¢ Proulde and manage sustainable, sultable, high «quality community spaces for' VCCS

*  Actively'deieloping our comimunity lantl and property assets

o Genefating surplus fromi our commercial and soclal enterprise activities to Increase grant making and
support

The delivery plan assoclated with this strategy focuses on actively managing our property portfollo so that we
can better support our VCCS, Invest In new bulldings so that tomorrow's sector riéeds are suppoited and to
ensuré that the Income driven from our conference $dcfal énterprise and commercial tenants generates
surpluses that can be.ploughed back into Supporting our communlties.

2019 saw us publish the full Vital Signs report. Sadly; we reported that child poverty has risen in our borough,
this will be a major plank on our hew corporate membership drive during 2020/21. Issues around knife crime
and rises In reported domestic violence saw us hold specific themed vital thinking events to promote Joined up
WOrkln‘g a‘cro's's 'cbmrr‘ruhity groups. Our contlnued 'foc‘us .on seeking good mental health prompted several
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However, the most significant impact on our operation came In the last month of the financial year. Covid 19
had and continues to have, a devastating Impact on our communlties. The gap between those families and
individuals who are thriving in Milton Keynes and those who continue to be left behind was demonstrated in a
starker form than ever before. This was why we Immediately launched the MK Emergency Covid 19 Appeal. The
Appeal focused on funding groups supporting the most vulnerable In our communities. As part of our planning
we sought out groups that could have the most Impact and we radically simplified our application processes so
that we could complete our normal due diligence process quickly and efficlently, speeding up the process so
that funding was made available quickly. At its peak we held several grant panels each week and were able to
make payments to groups within a week of application,

Whilst we will be producing a specific report on the Emergency Appeal during 2020/21, we are happy to report
that we can see the difference we are making already. Tens of thousands of pounds has already been donated
by Individuals and companles and already groups have been able to deliver emergency food parcels, help packs,
run voluntary support services, provide mental health services and even several projects that have bought
people together. We have been delighted that through the funding we have been able bring groups together to
forge new partnerships and we have created new bridges Into many of our BAME communities that prior to this
crisls we had not worked with. Whlilst our hearts go out to those familles and indlviduals wha have lost beloved
family members and to those Individuals that have been effected in many other ways through Ill health or
bereavement, we are also able to see how great our Milton Keynes community Is and how effective our collective
endeavours have had such life changing positive Impacts toa. MK Community Foundation will continue to strive
to do all we can to support our communitles, inspire philanthropy and to play our part in the leadership of our
borough so that we bulld a resillent, creative, Inclusive and philanthropic community in Milton Keynes. '

Lawrence Revill - Chair of Trustees

%
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Trustees’ Annual Report (continued)

The Trustees have pleasure In presenting their annual report and audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2020, which are also prepared to meet the requirements for a directors’ and strategic
report and accounts far Companies Act purposes.

The financlal statements comprise the group accounts of Milton Keynes Community Foundation (the
“Community Foundation”) and its wholly owned subsidiary, MK Community Properties Limited. These
statements have been prepared In accordance with the accounting policies set out In note 1 to the accounts and
comply with the Memorandum and Articles of Assoclation, the requirements of the Companles Act 2006,
Charities Act 2011 and the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) “Accounting and Reporting by Charities”
applicable to charities preparing thelr accounts in accordance with {FRS 102),

The accounts on pages 28 to 57 incorporate all the varlous funds within the Community Foundation. An analysis
of the group Income and expenditure between the varlous funds Is provided In note 19,

STRATEGIC REPORT
Objectives and Activities

The objects of the Community Foundation are defined In its Memorandum and Articles of Association, allowing
the Trustees to make grants out of capital and Income to voluntary groups, charitles and individuals who support
people within the Milton Keynes unitary authority area. The Trustees confirm that they have referred to the
guldance contained In the Charity Commisslon’s general guidance on public benefit when reviewing the
Communlty Foundation's aims and objectlves and in planning future activities and setting the grant making
policy for the year. Fund holders have the opportunity to direct a small percentage of thelr funds outside the
Mllton Keynes Unitary Authorlity area.

The Community Foundation has a flve-year strategic framework which seeks to increase the grants and support
avallable to the Voluntary, Community and Cuiture Sectors (VCCS) across the borough.

Our.Strategic Plan States:
Outr Vislon Is for a thriving Milton Keynes where everyone Is contributing to thelr community.

‘Our Misslon.ls to connect people with resources, skills and ideas to enrich lives and create positive growth for
Milton Keynes. We achleve our misslon through three themes of: ‘
"Suppofting~ inspifing ~‘Léading-

s  Supporting '

To support the growth and development of our voluntary communlty and cultural sector;
e Inspiring

To lhsplre giving to our communities through philanthropy and other soclal action;
e leading

To take a lead In connecting and growlng sustalnable communities,

Our Strateglc Goal over the next five years Is to bulld a reslllent, creative, inclusive and philanthropic
community.

Qur Outcomes.

1. A sustalnable, resilient, confident and creative VCCS;

2. An actively philanthropic Milton Keynes community;

3. An effective and appropriately resourced VCCS and MK Community Foundation.

In flvé:years-time our :lmpa;crwill be: A resllient, thriving, active and energetic community.
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The Comimunity: Foundation’s wholly owned trading subsldlary company, MK Community Properties Limited, Is
a provider of meeting and conference facilities. In addition, the company also leases small business units on
licehce to both commerclaland not for profit organisations. Its aim Is to support the voluntary community and
cultural sectof In Milton Keynes, elther through subsldised meeting and conference room hire or Indirectly
through its surplus Income from commercial small business units, which contributes towards the Community
Foundation s grant maklng programme, MK Cominiunity Properties Limited also owns 22 commuriity land sltes
and 12 strateglc Commuity Foundation Land sltes.

The': Communrty Foundatlon continues to face a humber of challenges In both the short and long term due to
the growth plans for Milton'. Keynes arising from both the government’s Growth Agenda proposals, responding
to the opporturilties of the Oxford Cambridge arc project and the changes effecting Central Miiton Keyhes.
Addltlonally we seek to providé.appropriate anid adequate support for the changes in our communities diversity
to dellver equity and Incluslon across our borough, all thls coupled -with the continuing Councll budget
conistrairits, where monles are increasingly being focused on primarlly statutory requirements, the challenge for
the Communlty Foundation Is how we ensure that ongoing support is avallable to vulnerable peaple, to BAME
communities and our rural communities, To address the challenges; we offér a number ‘of: different types of
granits to'support our communities-and dellver community impacts:

ts-for sums. up.to' £200. (€300 In the.expansion areas) destgned as.a first application for. new:grassroots
Ions wlth a:decislon belng madé within five working days.

organ s
.an-lall Grants’ “for sums up to £1;500 and Communlty, Grants for sums up to £5,000. In-exceptional circuristances

the Communlty Foundation may award larger grants for significant projects dependent on needs and priorities.

Transformation Grants: for multi-year projects taking place over up to three years. They are deslgned to offer
signlficant strateglc support to local organlsatlons working with our New Communities or with oider people and
people with disabllities.

:kargeiSti; 000 for multi-year strategic projects for a maximum'.of 3 years.
Fundlng for this programme comes from our Margaret Powell Foundation Fund and additional funding from The
Natiohal Lottery Community.Fund of £300,000, In the form of match funding, enabling the Lottery to offer
extended support In the local area.

itis often the case that, large strateglc projects due to thelr wider alms, do not fall Wwithin the restraints of 12
motniths: This multl-year programme allows the Foundation to support local groups or charlties across:a iumber
of yéars: helping them tofocus on capaclty billding, sustalnabllity and addresslng emergent stratégic needs

In July 2020, the Board of Trustees'revlewed the actlvitles over the year of the Communlity Foundation bétween
1% April 2019 and 31 March 2020,

Dellverlng community’ Impact Is central to -our mission and to achlevlng our vision for Mllton Keynes. ‘Our
activities during the year align to the Strateglc Plan under-the themes of supportirig, Inspifing.arid leading as
follows:

Philanthropy
Supporﬂng
‘s Wesecuréed funding of £150,000 from MK Councll called the MK 2050 Fund for 2019-20. This fund s
for supportlng new organisations, supporting existing groups while they :seciire new funding and
stronger finances and supporting disadvantaged people. MKCF will recelve an 8% fee for all awarded
grants:
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The Philanthropy Team secured a new £50,000 endowment Family Fund to support young
disadvantaged people in MK and to also support 1 arts bursary per year. MKCF will recelve a 10% fee
for all awarded grants.

The Phllanthropy Team also secured a new Corporate Fund from Anglian Water, a flow through fund
at the value of £15,000 to support poverty and disability projects. MKCF will recelve a 10% fee for all
awarded grants.

Four Applications and Monitoring workshops were delivered through the year.

Eight Sports Bursaries totalling £9,000 in partnership with Sport MK and Sports Aid.

We awarded the seventh Adams Englineering Prize Bursary, in partnership with MK College totalling
£2000.

The team continued to meet with Fundholders to report on grants and encourage further giving as
well as regular visits to business networks to encourage new support.

Held our 31st Car Raffle although In recent years participation and interest has decreased, despite
additional promotion and online ticket sales the raffle ralsed €7,593 for local groups.

Inspiring

Leading

Organised several ‘Seelng Is Believing’ visits.

Our Member's reception was held at MK Gallery and was attended by over 100 members, fund holders
and Trustees.

The Foundation joined the Cultural, inclusion and Diversity group led by AHA (Arts and Herltage
Alliance) and commissioned by MK Councli to determine the barilers of diverse communities accessing
Art and Culture In Milton Keynes.

Next Generatlon Philanthropy: We held our first next generation workshop with students from The
Hazeley Academy and MK College.

Vital Signs for 2019 was a report on ali areas and was dellvered to an audience of 100 people at the
launch event on 2 October.

We Jolned a working group at UKCF to explore how United Nations Sustainable Development Goals can
be Incorporated Into our research work on Vital Signs.

We facilitated a working group of volunteers from MK Soroptimists, MK College, MK Rose and
Working with Trustees we have delivered a new Grants Policy which better reflects the needs of the
VCCS.

Marketing
It has been a busy year with the Marketing Team being reduced to 1 member of staff for 4 months of the year,

we stiil managed to support the Philanthropy team in profiling case studles, events, and materlals.

Supporting

Coordinated the production of the Vital Signs report, including the design, print,.soclal media and
launch event and PowerPolint presentation.

Delivered a collaborative International women’s Day event at Campbell Park on 8% March bringing
together the Fawcett society, MK College, MK Soroptomists and the Cenotaph Trust (MK Rose) Despite
the weather the event was well attended, and the resulting video was very well recelved on social
media.

18 web communications were sent to around 500 supporters each campaign, 98% delivered and 50%
opened, the most successful communication was to community groups glving information around the
Covid -19 grants appeal with a 65% open rate.

We started regular communications for Trustees and Vlice Presidents.
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Insplrlng

Leading

In a partnership with MK Citizen we-had a Tull page feature every fmonth two of which were dotible

‘Page spreads:

Two Seeing Is Belleving events took place one in June and another n September both resulted in
substantlal donatlons belng made

.'Interwews on subjects around Vital Signs, promotlonal Intervlews promotlng the -Car -Raffle and

International Women’s Day and sharlng the- alrwaves with communlty groups to demonstrate the.
impdct of grant funding

Instagrdmfollowets nurrbér 1208; with a reach of 14000 views of posts-and 742-fikes:

We made 248 Facebook posts and Increased followers to 1,500, Posts weré shared 495 times and we
recéived 2,200 reactions the most viewed post was the announcement of the Car raffle winner in
February.

‘We attracted ai additional 213 iiew foilowers to Linkedin bringing the total to 662-of whicti 414 are.

based In Milton Keynés; 86 afe not for profit organisations; we posted 205 méssages

Property
CMK: propertles and conferenclng soclal enterprise dellvered the following-achievements:

®
o

Almost'28, 000 delegates used the, conference Space

403 more bookmgs than prevlous financlal year

Over £40,000'in room hire subsidles to voluntary community sector orgahisations

Converted a large area of MP House to 5 new small business units and found tenants for all of them at

the fullrental rate.

Increase |n revenue: by almost £10, 000

Finslistin the national MIA Tearm awards

Planned and converted 2 vacant tenant spaces to create 2 new meeting pods - one with with 2 more
large meetlng rogims; the other with 2/3 medium/large.meeting rooms using removeable room
dlvidlng walls Both areas offering thelr own self-service refreshment area.

Pianned‘and created brand new high spec self-service break-out area on 4% floor conference centre In
MP Housg.

Converted the old’ café space: to create an enabled: meeting space to accommodaté groups including
guests with various dlsablllties Includlng moblllty, vision, hearing etc,

Newy state:of the art conference 1T lnstalled across the whole conference faclllty glving-us an
advantage over other Iocal venues

Installed new wi-fi dccéss points dcross both biilldings to increase the speed and rellabllity of the wifi
to tenants and conference centre guests.

Planned and completed the works to credte a new café In the receptiori dréd of Acorn House. New
café owner slgheil the lease and the café becamie operational and open to the public in March.
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Across the wider Property Estate:
¢ Weapproved Community Foundation land applications to Sleve MK, a not-for-profit organisation which
alms to address the problem of educational underachlevement among young people, particularly those
aof black and minority ethnic backgrounds.
e Supported the Shital Temple Project to develop thelr new community bullding In Tattenhoe and
conducted extenslve community arblitration activities
Completed a condition survey for whole portfolio
Completed site analysis for all undeveloped sites
Established Task & Finish Group to lead a Property Strategic review
e Continued our Brookland Gymnastic & Table tennis development project, securing a new housing
development partner

Governance
o During the year we recruited three new Trustees.
e We completed the first part of our Governance review based on the Charity Governance Code.
°  We establish a new committee structure of Resources, Phllanthropy & Grants, Property, Audit and
‘ Remuneration and several Grants Panels.
¢ We agree new terms of reference and re-organised committee memberships
*  We appointed a Vice-Chalr and commenced the recrultment process for the next Chalr of Trustees
s We appointed 2 new community representatives to our Grants panel to replace those retiring on
rotatlon,

Current Committees

Resources
The Resources Committee met five times during the year and has five Trustee members. The purpose of the
committee Is to oversees the areas of the Community Foundation that create an income flow or demands a cost:
* Income Flows: Philanthropy and Fund Development, Commercial Properties, Community Propertfes,
Soclal Enterprise, Investment, Cash Holdings
e Costs: Philanthropy, Property, Human Resources, Investment Management, Projects
{including budget), HR Issues, Board evaluation, and other operational resources e.g. IT systems.

The aim of thls commilttee s to oversee the stewardship of the Community Foundation’s tangible assets,
Investments, people and the monitoring of the organization’s income and costs:
*  Monitor and review the performance of the Community Foundatlon’s Income and costs,
e Set and monitor the delivery of the Community Foundation’s investment policy, Including oversight of
Investment Management arrangements.
e Oversee the Community Foundation’s Philanthroplc Fund development growth (Endowment and Flow-
through Funds)
o Oversee the financlal performance of the Community Foundation’s social enterprise and income
generation programmes
e Review the activity plans of the Community Foundation staffing arrangements, Human Resource
management, salary budget and recommend Human Resource related policies to the Board for
appraval,
» Review MK Community Foundation’s work to ensure compliance with Statutory and Regulatory
requlrements.
¢ To conslder other topics, as defined by the Board.

Attendance of this committee during the year was 73%

“
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hllanthropy & Grants
The Philanthropy and Graits Comilttee was established in-November 2019 and therefore only met 3 tinmes

during the-year. It has five Triistée members and two external members. The purpose of the committee is to
advise, oversee and monitor-the Community Foundation’s phllanthropy & grants activity and strategy

The alm of thls comniittee is

«  To make declslons regarding the philanthropy.strategy and grants. pollcy, in partlcular to focus on both
‘philanthiropy Impactful Fund growth and grantmaking,

e  Tooversee andmonitor.the actlvmes of the community grants panel making recommendations In order
to’ Improve the effectiveness of grafit’ maklng‘and to better align to-vital signs,

‘o To régularly review philanthropy performance agalrist the budget Includlng fund development
Income, grant making distribution plans,

* To approve and review the lmpact of new and existing: strateglc partnershlps

*  To oversee the Community F dation’s marketlng and corhmuriication to enstite thedctivities:are fit
for pufpase, In order to enhiance sir féputation-and builld our:piofile across dlf of functions ncluding
phlla nthropy, grant making, property and Conferenélng Socid) Entérprise.

o Tokeepthe Trustee board updated and Involved with the phllanthropy stratégy, In lirié With the
<chaflty commlsslon and fundralsing regulators guldance. (6c20 and Fundralsing Codé of Practice),

Grants Paneél
The Grants Pariel met five times during the year and has-four Trustee meinbers assisted by 12 Communlty

Represeéiitatives. The alins of this panelare;
»  To review applicatlons for grants, provide Information and prioritize applications.
e To regularly review Grants potlcy -and pracess, in'line with the changlng needs of the voluntary sector
and our strategic alms and make recormmetidation to the Phillanthropy & Grarits committee of any

improvements.
Attendanice of this Commilttee during the year was 80%.

Progerty
The Property Commlttee met four {imes a year-and hias sevén Trustee Tmembers: asslsted by our Property. Asset

Consultant and Director of Opgrations. The purposeof the: Commijttee s to oversee the lmplementatlon of MK
.Community Foundatioh's Property Strategy ahd. performance of- the organlzatlon s property related Social
-enterprise: activities: .
The alms of this.committee.are to:

o [ake declslonsabiout. disposal of leaseho!ds of Community Foundation land.

o  Overseeithe Property: and Estate management operatlonal activities-and-performance.

6 -Oversee the Community F Foundation’s Property Development projects and make related
recommendations té the Board.

s Review and make recommendations-related to Property policy.

o To consider other topics as deflied by the Board. /

Attendance of this Committee during the year was94%.

10
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Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee met twice during the year and has two Trustee members {one of which Is the
Chalr of Trustees). The purpose of the Committee Is ta oversee the Remuneration Policy and set the salary
structure for the Chief Executive and Executive Team.

The aims of this committee are to consider and recommend the policy for the remuneration (including benefits,
pension arrangements and termination payments) of the Executives of the Charity

In determining such policy, take into account all factors which It deems necessary including relevant
legal and regulatary requirements,

Within the terms of the agreed Policy to determine the total individual remuneration package of each
executive member of the Charity Including, where appropriate, bonuses, incentive payments, other
awards and penslon arrangements, '

To conslder all recommendatlons relating to the Executive Team’s annual performance review and any
related bonuses/ salary recommendations,

The role of the Remuneration Committee does not encompass declslons to appoint, employ or dismiss
executives or other staff members,

To obtaln relfable, up-to-date information about remuneration in other companies / charities.

To appoint remuneration consuitants and commisston or purchase report surveys or informatlon,
which Is deemed necessary, within agreed budget,

To conslder other topics, as defined by the Board.

Attendance of this Committee during the year was 89%.

Audit

The establishment of the Audit Committee was agreed in November 2019, however recruitment of members
was not completed before the end of the financial year. it Is anticipated that It will meet two times a year and
consist of four members to Include the Chalr of Resources, one Trustee and two Independent externat
members. The purpose of the Committee will be Is to oversee the preparation for internal audit and reviews
the external audit process.

The aims of this committee are to oversee all aspects of the Community Foundation's activities requiring audlt
contral and risk management and to advise on audit policy matters:

Ensure that all appropriate regulatory and audit procedures are introduced and adhered to.

Oversee the annual audit, Including the review of the external auditor's management letter and,
where applicable, advise on the Community Foundation’s response to any audit recommendations.
Revlew the management letter with the External Auditors, which should Include discussing the nature
and scope of the audit and the auditor’s views on the Community Foundation’s Internal controls.
Recommend the audit fee to the Board and ensure that the provision of any non-audit services does
not Impalr the external auditor’s independence or objectivity.

Conslder other topics as defined by the Board.

Achievements and Performance
Total support provided by the Community Foundation to the Voluntary and Community sector during the
financlal year ended 31 March 2020 totalled £2,004,816 (2019: £2,318,641),

‘Grant'Making

The amount of £1,148,218 (2019: £1,176,732) was awarded In grants by the Communlity Foundation during the

year, The grants awarded In the year ended 31 March 2020 were In the Vital Signs themed areas,
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This level of grant making efiabled furiding to be provided with 139 grants to.120 local 6rgé.hi's"affl¢)ns and
individuals In order to support community prajects that covered a wide range of Initiatives in Milton Keynes
during the year to 31 March 2020.

Thé level of grant making achieved during the'year means that the Community Foundation has how awardéd ln
excess of £13, 13m In grants sirice 1986.

Applications for grants are made online with full detalls of how to apply-on our webslte. All applicants:are
encouraged to speakto a member of the Philanthropy team so they'may be:supported in thelr: appllcatlon

We are-able to accept grant applications from constifuted, not-for-profit organisatiohs supporting
benéficlaries from Milton Keynes, including, but not imited to, the following: '
o Local commuriity groups '
Voluntary Sector Organisations
Registered Charitles
Charitable Incorporated Qrganisations
Soclal Enterprises
Sports Clubs
Faith groups
Community interest Companles (festrictions-apply)

© 0 0 0 O0.00

“The Community Foundation does not accept-applications from the following:
«  Individuals (outside of Gur bursary programmes)
»  For-profit organisations
o Political paitlesor affillated groups

Groups are requlred 1o supp|y the followmg documentation:
o A governing docurient that detalls an approprlate asset lock and-defalls thatithe organisation Is-hot

for profit

o Financlal records for.a minlmum of 1 year. The type réquifed will depend on the slze and structure‘of
the organisation {e:g. reglstéred charltles with a turnover of over £1 million will.néed to submit

' audlted accounts, a small coimunilty gfoup may only have a baslc income and expenditure sheet).

For organisations that have existed for under a year, a bank statement will sufflce.

o Equal Opporturilties or Diversity and Incluslon Policy

o  Child and Adult'Safeguarding Polictes (lncludlng Vulnerable Adult Policy, If applicable)
Sufﬂclency of documeritation provided Is determined during assessment and organisatlons submlttlng
documentatlon that does not meet required standards may be withdrawn from our programmes, at
the discretion of the Philanthropy and Executive Teams.

All applications are.assessed and scored by assessors and panels against the following criteria:
¢ Neédand Demand
¢ Reach and Impact
o Sustainabllity
o Innovation
o Group profile {an assessment of the etrength of an organisation’s governance and track record of
delivering projects of quallty)
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Grants awarded last year;

9 Micro Grants

60 Small Grants

46 Community Grants

8 Transformation Grants

2 Extraordinary Grants

1 Large Strategic Grants

2 #iwill Grants

1 Tampon Tax Community Fund Grants
3 Partnership Grants

8 Sport Bursaries

1 Engineering Prize

3 Fred Roche Travel and Study Awards
2 Emergency Response Grants

Milton Keynes Community Foundation Limited
(a company limited by guarantec)

Trusiees' annual report and financial statements of the Group

31 March 2020

We achieved fund development targets including £33,319 In Gifts in Kind plus:

e Created 9 new funds
s  Completed 2 trust transfers

s Completed extensive discussion with MK Councll to set up a new 2050 Communlty Fund

Our benefit to the Community was In excess of £2.4M:

e £798,667 In grants

e £76,934 BLC

o £272,617 Local Glving

e £1,243,000 property subsidles

e  £40,000 Conference and meeting room subsidies

This level of grant making enabled funding to provide 146 grants to 120 local organisations and 12 bursaries to
Individuals in order to support community projects that covered a wide range of Initiatives In Milton Keynes

during the year to 31 March 2020.

The property portfolio.

As reported last year, a lot of work was undertaken to enable us this year to enable a new Property Strategy to

be agreed.
Three themes of:

* Provide and manage sustalnable, sultable, high quality community spaces for VCCS
o  Actively developing our community land and property assets

o  Generating surplus from our commerclal and social enterprise activities to increase grant making and

support

13



Milton Keynes Comimunity Foundation Limited
(a company limited by giiaranteg)

Trustees "-annual raparl and financial statements of the Graup
31 March 2020

STRATEGIC R,EPORT _(contmued)

During the year we made an application to use funding recelved for targeted future land sales to fuind
development 6fVCCS hubs-and we continuied to move forward with our ‘Brooklands gymnastic and table tennls
centre development after agreeing a new partnershlp-with a soclal housing organisation In support ‘of that
scheme Theproperty. portfollo includes 11 properties comprised of 227,000 square feet of accommodationto
bé let'to’ voluntary, onimunity and cultural sector groups along with 16 let and 34 undeveloped Community
Fouindation Land (CFL) sites. Despite no.inconie from sale of leases for CFL sltes, the surplus from this part.of
the ofganisation (before losses on salé of CFL sltes at discounted price) for the year amounted to £532,261(2019:
£369,646 This has also enabled the’ Commiunity-Foundation 10 suppoft the Voluntary Cammunity and Cultural
S&ctor: by providing- -accommodation on preferentlal terms. The amount of this subsldy, the difference between
the full commercla) rental and the subsidised rent paid by Voluntary and Community sector tenants was In excess
of £1,243,000 (2019; £1,151,000) for the year to 31 March 2020.

A;Bonatlons Recelved
Durlng the yearto 31 Maich 2019 voluntary lncome recelved by the Community: Foundatlon totalled

£1,077, 013 (2019:£948,889).

“The Conference soclal enterprlse performed well agaln this year, with Income up on-the ‘previous yéar. A
slgnificant-amount of IT was completed in the year, and the activitles were curtalled in March due to Covid 19,
wlth the majority of staff belng furloughed ds meeting and conference room hife stopped. The operatlng surplus
) F was still £21,731, providing a £23k surplus which was .donated to the Community Foundation - I
-addltlon VCCS:group recelved room hire discounts totally-£42,000 in The level of Smalll Business units Is now at
53 with only siort vold times {mainly dué to the time gap between old ténants moving out and new tenants

moving in).

Pt

-G “mmunltv Foundatlon tand: Sltes
‘No'new Jeases have been granted during the year hoWeyer ong néw: reseryation was- agreed to: Sleve MK and

tWwo reservatlons remain In place for Puzzle Centre for a plot In-thié Western Expansion Area and Shitd] Hindu
Group for & plot In Tattenhoe.

Ouf communiity-developienit-sité In Neathi Hill'which was belng developed by the Murugan T emple Trust was
completed-duyingthe year,

Financial Revlew
Durlng the finanélal year ended 31-Mafch 2020 thié Csmmunity Folindation generated a net group deficit béfore

investment gains and losses of £3,109 (2019 deficit of: £402,990).

The total value of the Community Foundation’s funds has increased to £68,079,498 (2019: £67,769,921). This
level of funds confinués to ensure sustalnablllty and enables: the Community 'Fouridation to continue to support
the growlng Jocal communlty In 4§ many ways-as posslblé,

Iicome

“The ‘Community Foundation’s Income Is primarily derived from four sources: Income from donations and
legacles, Income from other trading activities, Iivestment Income and the net Income of MK Community
Properties'Limited. Each of these sources of Income Is subject to different drivers.

The Income recelved by the Commiunity Foundatloh In theyear.ended 31 March 2020 totalled £3,747,078 (2019;
.£3;141;838).
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Expenditure

Out of the 203 applications recelved by the Community Foundation, 146 grants were awarded (2019: 147 grants
awarded) totalling £798,667. Of these awards, £336,104 remained unpald at the year end (2019: £376,999). In
addition, £272,617 {2019: £281,837) was distributed to local groups through the Local Giving Project and
£76,934 (2019: £164,646) was glven out in funds to Big Local Coniburrow from thelr Local Trust Grant, which we
administer. This gives a total of grants awarded of £1,148,218 (note 6)

The Group's total operating costs cortinue to be closely monltored, and for the year .ended 31 March 2020
amounted to £3,750,187 {2019; £3,544,828). In common with other charitable organisations, changes in
priorities year an year result In changes in cost allocations across the categories of expenditure.

Investments

The group’s investments were valued at the year-end at £15,253,352 (2019: £15,868,159), All of these
Investments were held by CCLA’s In thelr Charities Ethical Common investment Fund. CCLA Investment objective
over the long term Is to achleve an average annual total return of Inflation plus 5%. In previous years a
sepregated fund managed by the Investment managers UBS AG was held. UBS Investment objective over the
long term Is to achleve an average annual total return of inflation plus 4.7%, During the year, this investment
was sold and the monles invested within the CCLA Charitles Ethlcal Common Investment Fund.

The year In review was exceptlonal for a number of reasons. The first part of the year showed strong growth —
although this was wiped out in the final quarter with the whole economy beling affected by the Covid 19
outbreak. In spite of this the result has been a slight Increase In the dividend Income, whilst there has been a fall
In the value of the Community Foundation’s investments.

The Community Foundation’s Investment policy remains unchanged. This provides guldance on the Community
Foundation’s alm In Investing Its funds, Including Its position on risk; an Indication of the Community
Foundation’s asset allocatlon strategy; the benchmarks and targets by which the performance of the manager
wiil be judged; the Community Foundation’s stance on ethical Investment; the balance between capital growth
and Income generation which Is sought by the Community Foundatlon; and the scape of the Investment powers.

The Trustees have discretion to invest as they think fit and the investments held by the Community Foundation
have been acquired In accordance with these powers. The Investment strategy adopted Is to optimise the total
return from the investment portfolio whilst mitigating risk, as far as possible.

Under the terms of the Community First Endowment Match Challenge all funds ralsed under this programme
must be held at CCLA, Also, fifteen of the restricted donor funds and the Grassroots Endowment Challenge funds
were all Invested with CCLA.

Freehold and Leasehold properties

The financlal statements also include the valuation of the investment properties held by the Community
Foundatlon and Its trading subsidiary, MK Community Propertles Limited. Clearly any galn on revaluation of
propertles cannot be spent on grants unless properties are sold, many of which are occuplied by the voluntary
or charitable sector. Simllarly, any gain on the revaluation of Investments can only be realised if the Investments
are sold which Impacts on the future Investment Inconie,
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the freéhold and leasehold propertles‘wiere valued on-31 December 2019 by external valuers. Roblﬁsu‘ﬁ Hall;

Chartéred: Surveyors, on the basls of open market value In accordance with the appralsal and valuation manual
of the Royal Institution of Chaftered Surveyars (RICS). Wh|lst the Trustees-are of the apinion that there has been
rio materfal movement ini-value of these properties betivieen that date.and 31 March'2020, they belleve that
valuation of the propertles should be at Existing Use valuation to more appropriately reflect the Community
Féundation’s policy of allowing Voluntary and Community Sector groups to apply for a rent subsidy of up to 75%.

if thls Existing Use valuation weré to be Used, our Land and Biilldings wotild be valued at £43,836, 000, a decrease

of,f.s_ 867,950

-Rese‘n‘fé@

Sifice 1994 it has been the pollcy of the charlty to hold réserves ln the Communlty Fundfotailihg-at least £1
mllllon, which have not been committed or designated for-any particular purpose. However, In accordance with
the:éthos of Community Foundations, the Trustees continue to bulld these Invested funds over and above this
mlnlmum i&vel Iri order to ensure thatthe Investment Income derlved from these funds would protect futuire
beneﬂclarles and-operatfons of thé charity from thé effects of any unforeseen varlatlons In Its income streams
and underwiite a‘contihuation In the year-on-year growth In the grants budget; Currently, such funds stand at
£2;123, 596 (2019: £2;757,474). In March 2012 we were successful in securing funds from the Office for Civil
Soclety for the Community First’ Ehdowment Match Challenge. As a resuilt of our success‘n raising endowment
and subsequent growth In'the rarket the Commutilty First Endowment is-£11,603, 165 at'31 March 2020. At:31
March:2020 the amount of unrestricted funds was £53,169,910 (2019; £52,772,713) and the value of restflcted
funds. was£14;909,588 (2019: £14,997,208).

Within the unrestricted funds; the Trustees have designated from the Community Fund a separate Property
Fund equal in value to thé propertles-held by the group, less. mortgages Incuired to purchasé propertles,
together with a.réserve towards the cost of future property repairs and refurbishmeénts. 1t Is thé intention of
the Trilsteds thatithls furid Will be malntained-atlevels over.a 10 year-period 1 that will be sufﬂclent to finarice the
repairs and refurbishmerit-of the jproperty portfolio v
ensure that the property portfollo remains In a “fit for { purpose state.

The Trustees are satisfled that the charity's dsséts attributabie to: achof Its Funds-are avallable-afid adequate
to fulﬂl its obllgatlons In relation’to those funds. The Covid 19 pandemlc has had a slgnlflcant impact:on the

charlty Whilstwehave'been ableito secire slgnlﬂcav tefergency. funding; thls Is being pald ‘outtosupportthe -

VCES community of Milton Keynes. At thls stage we do not feel'that-our predicted funding levels will decline
'slgnlflcantly durl 32020/21 — but the organisation Is taking steps to ensure that costs are kept-to a minimum.

Out lnvestment portfollo continues to perform well, and the trustees have been assured that-the level of return
from listed investments will not: dropelgnlflcantly In the next: 12-18 months: In terms of our property portfolio,
we are monltoring the situation carefully, and providing support where heeded to tehants to ensure that they
contliiué to pay their rent and service charges. A number of tenants will naturally not-survive the pandemic,
and the Trustees are continually monitoring the best use of these units. Detalled planning and scenario testing
‘are belng completed and updated regularly, so that the Trustees are able to make Informed decislons regarding
the best-course of action to ensure that the organisation continues to be flnanclally sound.

‘Inspite.s of thie clirreit pandemic; the Trustees are.confldent that the Community. Foundation s able to continue
to.meet Its llabllities as they fall due for the foreseeable future anid that the accounts should be'prepared on the

g0ing concemn basls.

16




Milton Keynes Community Foundation Limited
(a company limited by guarantee)

Trusiees’ anual report and financial statements of the Group

31 March 2020
Trustees’ Annual Report (continued)
STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Risk Management
The Trustees annually review the major risks to which the charlty is exposed In order that they can ensure

systems and processes have been established to mitigate those risks, in order to ensure that all key areas of risk
arlsing from both Internal and external factors have been considered, risks are classified as either Governance,
Operational, Financlal, Environmental and External, Legal and Regulatory or Reputatlonal,

The Risk Mitigation Plan, which focused on actlons required to reduce risks affecting the organisation. The 2020
review of this plan Identified 31 risks (2019: 29). The key risks were:
e Ourwebsitels cloned / or fraud committed against our donors leading to loss of confidence of donors.
e Dilapldations/ renovation cost of CF buildings within the property estate not known or programmed
*  Kingston property valuation dropping due to a collapse In the retall property market

In response to these Risks, we ran and appointed new ITC suppliers, replacing all the organisations IT hardware
and update all the software, moving to a secure cloud environment, and have commenced work to procure new
webslte providers, We have replaced our Estate management cormmittee with a Director led Property
Operational managing group, who meet regular to have overslght on the property management issues and have
commissloned a detalled survey of our property portfollo so that renovatlon conslderations are Incorporatedinto
our Property Strategy and Property management plan. Finally, we keep the Kingston property under continuous
review as part of the Brooklands development project and have activity developed plans to retain and enhance
values,

Plans for Future Periods

Fund.Development

Central to Strategic Plan Is the focus on inspiring philanthropy In Miiton Keynes, Last year therefore, we agreed
a speclfic philanthropy strategy which sets out how we will do this, The establishment of a new Philanthropy &
Grants Committee has enhanced our focus on this very Important area of wark.

Initiatives included In philanthropy strategy include:

e Improving our understanding of the needs and motivations of our core audience and all our other
supporter audlences

s Developlng relevant MK Community Foundation brand, inspiring content and engaging propositions for
our communities to maximize thelr long-term engagement with us.

* Bullding sustalned relationships with our existing supporters {including HNWI, companles, MK
Institutlons, other MK Influencers, UKCF) to generate major grant funds and on-going support.

o |dentifying new audiences and develop relevant and inspiring new products to diversify and grow our
income generation portfollo -

¢ Promoting and growing regular Individual glving relationships and support community philanthropy
fundralsing partnerships.

* Ensuring research from Vital Signs is reflected through all MKCF activity

¢ Reviewing our grants policy and developing new accessible applicatlon procedures to enable MKCF to

"~ diversify and grow grant making portfolio and Impact.

e Ensuring that we can demonstrate the lmpact of our grant giving programme. We will support.grant
beneficiaries to ensure that they can easlly collect impact data.

o Broadening our grant offer to beneficlaries through property rent subsidies, supporting sustainable
fundralsing support, long term strategic partnerships etc,

e We are enhancing our systems to dellver a 360 view of our supporters and wili ensure we have CRM
that goes beyond the transactlonal

o Developing effective management information systems, policles and processes which enable énsure
compliance & better financlal and performance reporting.
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¢  Ensuring:ouf phllanthropy, ¢onference & property operations work together to déliver an outstanding
clistomeér experlence & maximise all philanthropy development opportunltles

# Renéwing existing (Inc. website) and develop new commuinication channels We willl implement a new
‘content strategy, including digltal engagement activity 16 enable us to connect with existing and new
siipporters.

. Creatmg meaningful reportlng ahd KPI's to meastre’ the succéss of oui phllanthropy and grant making

strategles.

Thls Is 'supported ‘by-a Phllanthropy Tedim that incjudes. two' ‘Philanithropy Directors who -lead the team and
manage the delivery programme, three-Philanthropy managers who oversee. the coriiplete phllanthropy cycle
broadly organised around our Vital signs areas of focus and two Philanthropy Assistaiit ‘who help process
applications, support the grant making procéss and support the teams work with phillanthroplst and corporate
supporters,

During the year we reviewed and fecommended a new Corporate menmbefshlp schere, which will be put In
place.during 2020/21 along with developling a new Individual mémbershlp and supported scheme which once
agreed wlll be rolled out during the 2020/21 financlal year. A hew Marketing and Communications manager will
be In place to support a renewal In our communicatlons, enhancing how to project our impact staries and create
smiafter way weé can betome -moreopen-and accesslble for -all our comrnunities across the borough.

Our Board of Trustees are fully-aware of thelr. responisibiiities for fundraising activities and recelve an annual
Charlty Commission.C20 report, alongside the Philanthropy & Grants Comnilttee have delegated responsibllity
for: contlnuous monitoring of any fundralsing activities:

In October 2019 we publlshed 4 full version of our Vital Signs report covering: Strong communitles work &the
Economy, Educatlon, Diverslty, disadvantage & paverty, Houslng, Crime and Safety, Health & wellbelng,
Transport, The local environmert:and Arts& heritage.

Mieting the:Chaiénges 6t Grotith

Throughout theéyearwe have erfibarked-on a lot of listen actlvltles, 'so that our detailed plans for-Philanthiropy
and Property reflect-and responds to-the challenges faclfig the séctor. With our staff-team at fuill complement
at-theend of the year and our plansagreed by our committees and Board we are confident we have in place all
we need to deliver the Community Foundatlons Goals, chief of which was to Increase-our support to the VCCS

by'S0% by'2023.

2020 however began very differently to what afiyone had expected with the threat of a pandemic hitting the
UK. By March 2020 we had switched -all-our planning to being ready to respond to what we: recognlsed s being
onedf the biggest threats to the VCES, our communities and the bisiness sector that supports bur phllanthropy

The fast month-of the financial year 2019/20 therefore was dominated by establishiig: and Jaunching our MK
Covid19 Emergency Response Appeal. This was supported by MK Council who made an iniltial £50,000 donation.

The Appeal focused on groups that supported vuinerable people. Additionally, towards the end of the year we
worked w!th other. Communlty Foundations and the Natlonal Emergency Trust to agree-a partnership which
eiablés usto imake available national funding and the National Lottery to re-direct some of their agreed funding

to support the vulnerable,

The conslderable &fforts taken to set the new fund up, establishing donation- support services, re-shaping our
webpages, reviewing-and slmpllfylng our-application process enabled the Communlty Foundation o rur several
grants panels edch weék aiid to be able to process, consider and make payments into groips bank accéiints’
within a week of application.
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The Government Lockdown that came Into effect on 23" March meant the whole staff team where moved to
workIng from home and all our systems Immediately went on-line including staff meetings, grant panels, Board
and Committee meetings. All of which, after a few minor adjustments has worked extremely well and enabled
the Community Foundation to have no deterioration in service, rather a rapld enhancement of support to the
MK communitles. These changes have enabled us to enhance our performance, profile and standing. We will
focus on embedding this good progress and strong performance in the years ahead,

In particular we will:

e Enhance our communication methods to our communitles, philanthropists and supports as well as to
the VCCS

e  Launch our Corporate membership scheme

e launch a new Individual Membership and Supporters scheme

e  Formally open our new café and the enhanced meeting room facilities in Acorn House {delayed due to
Covid 19)

o Launch new series of events and engagement activitles {following any restrictioris that maybe in place)

» Re open our CMK building reception areas to the public and our meeting rooms In the Conferencing
Soclal Enterprise

*  Seek to ratlonalise usage of our CMK office accommodation and support VCCS to create efficlent use of
space across our estate In response to Covid 19

» Develop new conferencing services and look to develop evening and weekend use

e Enhance our Small Business unit offer to support flexible working and to add additlonal services such
as access to our glgabit broadband connectlon and IP telephone services

e Commence the bullding of our first VCCS Hub, the Brooklands Gymnasium and Table Tennls Centre

e Develop further our VCCS Hub project and seek to bring forward the next major development to follow
Brookland

*  We seek to establish a capital Investment pot to support the bullding of new VCCS hubs

« Implement new formal partnership agreements with key groups in the borough so that we can work
more efficlently and gain greater Intelligence of the sector In which they work.

¢ Publish the 2020 Vital signs report in October and launch the assoclated Thinking programme to further
develop our convening role within the borough so that the Issues highlighted In our Vital Signs Report
are considered cross sector, philanthropic responses are encouraged, and partnershlp working Is
stimulated as a result.

e Continue to engage tn our city placemaking activities help to create policy and planning cross sector
that will enable Milton Keynes to develop, grow and thrive

Governance.and Management
Our Governance Task and Finish group established in 2018/19 completed its detalled review of our governance
structures, policles and procedures.

The Governance T&F group met on four occasions throughout the year alongside group members belng tasked
to undertake research and submitting proposltlon papers to the T&F group.

T&F review of the Governance was undertaken against the Governance Code of Conduct and a line by line review
of the Artlcles of Assoclation was undertaken to ensure policy and procedures sighted in the Articles were in
place and reviewed.

In March 2019 the Board considered recommendation to review the appolritment process of Board Trustees,

the President and Vice-Presidents, Chalr and Vice chalr of the Board as well as the need to appointa Secretary
and Treasurer. Recommendatians were agreed to update the Committee structure and to recruit independent
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mémbefsto slippoit the duidit function and the remuneration review responsibllities of the Board. Additionally,
areview of the membershlp was considered and Whethier the AGM shouild be replaced with a different form of
event that:célébrates the Community Foundations’ work.

Thé Board ‘agreed to change ithe Committee structure, replacing the Finance Committee with a Resolirces
Comnilttee coverlng the finction of both finance and staff resources and‘a separate Audit Commlttee which
lncludes two external members one of which will chalr the éominittée, A new Philanthropy and Grants
Commlttee was agreed to be establlshed this committee with oversee the Implementatton of the Grants Pollcy,
thé Philanthropy Strategy and the Marketlng and communications function. The Property Board remains as
before and Is tasked with .overseeing the lmplementatlon of the Propérty Strategy and the varlous property
projects that are on-golng and that are scheduled to come forward In the years ahead. The Remuneration
Committée will also Include two external memibers and will be solely tasked with overseeing the remunération
packages .of the Chief Executlve and Senior Leadership Team.

Recruitment processes were also.agreed for the recruitment, of the Chalr of the Board which will seek external
nominations and the Vice-Chalr role which is expected to be nomlnated froin the: exlstlng Board,

Terims of office: were, agreed to'be a maxlmum of three, thrée-yeaf terms after‘which & Trustéeds regulred to
Wi from the Board. Termis of. reference-and membershlp of all the comimilttees-will be consldered and
in the next financlél year. .

agr

The Governance T&F will continue to-meet In the neXt financial year as furthier work is required to review-the
Implementatlon of the new cammittee - sgr‘ tures, undertake further work In developing new membershlp
options, and to.feview the policy and procediiré to support the President and Vice- presldent roles

The Trustees havlng undertaken the review’ detailed :above, consider the governance structures of ‘the
Comimiity Foundatlon to be approprlate anid enable’ the Community Foundation to be a success In Its next
stage of development. Also, in line with its continuing comimitment to ascertdin best value framlts préfessional
advisers, the Commiunity Foundation regularly undeitakes a‘teridering process for this type of service.

Mﬂton Keynes Community | Foundatiori Is also & member of the UK Cammunity. Foundations (UKCF), an umbrella
body representing Co| ‘munlty Foundatlons across the Unlted Klngdom. A membershlp fee Is pald anhually. To
retain menibership-of this organisation, the Conmunity Foundation must comply with a number of criteria.

The recruitment and retention of staff remains a challenge as skilled employees are In'high demand‘in Villton
Keynes. | In response to the results of our staff survey we have; created a staff car parkingarea, | Introdticed flexibie
working patterns, set up Dedth In Séfvice beneflts and undergone 'a programme of Jeadership traliing for
Manager level employees and above. The resource of staff time presents a real challenge for the-current team.

Ddyto day operatidrial Issues need to be balanced with the time taken to engage In the long term strategicissues
for the community and its Voluntary Sector In thls vital planning stage for the expansion of Miltor Keynes.

Structure; governince and management

Milton Keynes Community Foundation Limlted Is a company iimited by guarantee and a registéred granit making
char)ty Milton Keyries Commurilty Foundation was establlshed In 1986 and Is principally engaged in the
promotion of any charitable purpose for the benefit of the communlty in the Milton Keynes unltary authority
area: The Community Foundationalso .has a Wholly owned trading subsidlary, MK Community Properties
Linited, Thesubsidiary company operatesasa provlder of meeting and conference facilitles. Its aim s to support
‘the chari;able objectlves of Its parent undertaking, the Community Foundation.
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Trustees’ Annual Report (continued)

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued}

The Community Foundation is governed by its Memorandum and Articles of Assoclation. The Articles of
Assoclation define those who slt on the Board of the Community Foundation as Trustees. The Articles of
Assoclation state that the Trustees have the power to admit members to the Community Foundation, As set
out in the Articles of Assoclation, the Board of Trustees shall comprise not less than five and not more than
twenty members. At each Annual General Meeting one third of the Trustees shall retire by rotation but they
shall be eligible for re-election for up to four terms provided that they are not otherwise disqualified under the
conditions set out In the Articles of Assoclation.

Anyone wanting to become a Trustee must apply In writing and Is subject to the Community Foundation’s
recruitment procedures before becoming eligible for election as a Trustee,

Trustees are sometimes tenants of our bulldings in their capacity as Employees or Trustees of other Voluntary
and Communlty Sector organisations. All such relationships are at normal commercial rates and are disclosed In

note 17 to these accounts,

Trustée recruitment; Induction-and training

As set out above, potential Trustees of the Community Foundation are either invited to apply to the Board or
can be nominated by a member of the Community Foundation. Potentlal Trustees, who can demonstrate that
they have the skills and knowledge required, will be Intervlewed by a panel made up of Board members and
which Involves the Chief Executive, Successful applicants are recommended to join the Board. All appointments
as Trustees are confirmed at the Community Foundation’s general meeting.

The Community Foundation needs an Informed, skilled and enthusiastic Board of Trustees, supportive of the
wark of the Community Foundation and able to carry out thelr dutles of governance under Charity Law. The
Community Foundatlon Is working towards achieving this through:
e Induction - Introducing new Trustees to the ethos and working of the Community Foundation and to
their dutles In the governance of the organisation.
» Identifying and providing training — an ongolng process, assessing both current and future needs as the
Communlty Foundatlon develops,
e Board Meetings — these are structured to encourage all Trustees to become more informed on all
aspects of the Community Foundation’s activities and to be as fully engaged as possible.

Organisation
The Communlty Foundatlon currently has 12 Trustees. The Trustees are responsible for ensuring the Community
Foundation continues to meet Its charitable objectives as set out In Its Memorandum and Articles of Assoclation,

A Chief Executive Is appolnted hy the Trustees to manage the day-to-day operations of the Community
Foundation. To facllitate effective operations, the Senlor Executive Team has delegated authority, within terms
of delegation approved by the Trustees, for operational matters,

The Board meets six times a year and there are sub-committees covering Strategic Property, Resources,
Remuneration, Audit and Philanthropy and Grants, which are attended by senior members of the Executive
Team. As well as these, time-limited task groups for specific projects are set up as and when required. The
attendance at Board Meetings in the year was 92% (2019: 83%).

Indemnity Insurance has been taken out in respect of the Trustees as detalled in note 18 to the financial
statements.

21



Milton Keynes Community. Foundation Limited
(a company limited by guay ‘aniee)

Trustees’ annual i'gpoit aid fiiancial statements of the Group
31 March 2020

Trusteés’ Arinual Report (continiied
STRATEGIC REPORT. (continued)

Pay policy for: key personnel

The Board of Trustees conslders that the key management personnel of the group to be the Senior Executive
Team, who aré In charge of directing, controlling, running-and operatlng the group on a day to ‘day basls. All
Trustees glve of thelr time freely and no Trustée recelved remuneration In the year. Detalls of -any Trustee 3

expenses. and related party transactions are shown In note 17 to the accounts,

The pay of the Senlor Executive Téam 15 reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committée and normally
lncreased In Iine wlth average eamlngs In vrew of the nature of the charlty, the Trustees benchmark agalns ;pay

Foundation network

__Related parties and ¢o-operation with othér organisations:
TheCémmunity Foundation and its Wholly owned trading subsidiary:MK Community Propertles Limited provide

services and support to-other charlties and organisations, Including those who have Trustees In common with
the Comimunity Foundation. -A full Tist of transactions with relatéd parties in the year, along with the nature of
the relatlonships, Is showii In note 17 of these accounts,

‘Fundraising

The Commuriity Foundation does not employ any person or companles to act on its behalf to carry out.any
fundralsing activities: Thé Community’Foundation is reglstered with the Fundralsing Regulatof and the: Gamblifig
Commission and subscfibes to the standards arid regulations required under the registrations. The Communliy
Foundatlon alsa subscribes to Be Gamble Aware. No fundralsing complaints-were recéived by the Community

Foundatlon in the year.

During the year the Commuinity Foundation reviéwed and updated our privacy notice:

The Privacy:Notice in brief
¢ We collect informatian that is elther personal data (such as namés; addresses, and telephone

numbers) or:non-personal data (such as'your Interriet Protacol (IP) address, web pages accessed etc.)
¢ We collect Inforimation about our supporters, donars, fundraisers, volunteers and employees.

e We. collect information to provide services or goods, to provide information, to fundialsé, for
administration, to asséss and award grants, research, proflling, analysls, and for the
prevention/detection of crime.

o We only.collect the Information that we need, or thatwould be useful to us In our alm to provide the
best-possible service. '

o We do out very best to keep personal informatlon secure, wherever we collect personal data onlinie,

o We fevér sell your data, @nd we will never share It with another company or charity for marketing
purposes.

o ‘We only share data where we are required by law, or with carefully selected trusted suppliers who do
work for us: All our suppllers are requlred by their contract to treat your data as carefully-as we
would, to only:use it as Instructed, and to allow us to.checK that they dothis,

o Qurwebsites use cookies —for-more Information chieck
https://wWww.mkcommunityfoundation:co.uk/cookies-policy/

The fuil. Privacy Notice which detalls what Information Is held, how we may use It, and what individual’s rights
are avallable on our website httos /jwww mkcommunltvfoundatlon €0. uk/prlvacv-pollcy/
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Trustees’ Annual Report (continued)
STRATEGIC REPORT (continuéed)

Statement of Disclosure to Auditors

So far as each Trustee is aware, there Is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditors are
unaware. Additionally, each Trustee has taken all the necessary steps that they ought to have taken as Trustees
In order to make themselves aware of all relevant audit Information and to establish that the company’s auditors
are aware of that information.

Auditor
RSM UK Audit LLP offer themselves for reappointment as auditor.

The Trustees’ annual report, which Is prepared under the Charities Action 2011, and which also contains all
information required In a directors’ report by the Companies Act 2006, and the incorporated Strateglic Report
prepared under the Companles Act 2006, were approved by the Board of Trustees and signed on behalf of the
Board.

Carole Baume

Trustee Registered Office:
Acorn House

Date: 3% September 2020 381 Midsummer Boulevard
Central Milton Keynes

MK9 3HP
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Stateméiitiof Trustees’ responsibilities.

Trustees responsu, lities in the preparation: of the: finanéil statements

The Trustees {who are also directors of Milton Keynes Community Foundation Limited for the purposes. of
company law) are responsible-for preparing the Trustees' Report, incorporating the Strategic Report-and the
financial statements In accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company and Charity law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each flnanclal year, Under
those laws the trustees have elected to prepare the financial statements In accordance with United Kingdom
Generally ‘Accepted Accountlng Practlces (United Klngdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under
Company and Charlty Law, the Trustees must notapprove the financial statements. unless they are satisfled that
they givea true and falr view of the state of affalrs of the group and the charitable company ahd of the Incoming
resources and application of resources, including the income and expenditure, of the charitable company for
that peilod. In preparing these financlal staternents, the trustees-are required to:
o select suitable accounting policles and apply them consistently;
0 observe the methods and principles in the Charitles SORP;
° makejudgments and.estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
o staté whether applicable UK accounting staridards have been followed, subject to any materlal
departures disclosed and explalned In the financial statements; and
°. prepare the fihanclal statements on a going concern basis unless it Is inappropriate to presume that the
group and the.charitable company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accountirig records that are sufficlent to show and explaln
the group's. and the: charltable company’ s transactions .and disclose-with reasonable accufacy atany time the
financial posltlon of the charltable company and to enable them to ensure that the financlal statements camply
with the Companles Act 2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the preventionand detection of fraud and other-irregularities.

m%’&w
Carole Baume
Trustee

Date: 3 September 2020
Reglstered office:
Acom House
381 Midsunimer Boulevard
Central Mllton Keynes, MK9 3HP
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Milton Keynes Community
Foundation Limited

Oplnion

We have audited the financial statements of Milton Keynes Community Foundation Limited (the ‘parent
charitable company') and Its subsidlary {the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the
Group Statement of Financlal Activities {incorporating an Income and Expenditure Account), the Group and
Company Balance Sheets, the Group Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financlal statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policles. The financlal reporting framework that has been applied In their
preparation Is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 “The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable In the UK and Republic of Ireland” {United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

in our opinlon the financlal statements:

© glve a true and falr view of the state of the group’s and the parent charitable company'’s affairs as at 31
March 2020 and of the group’s Incoming resources and application of resources, Including its Income
and expenditure, for the year then ended;

» have been properly prepared In accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirernents of the Companles Act 2006 and the Charities
Act 2011,

Basls for opinion
We have been appolinted auditors under the Companles Act 2006 and section 152 of the Charlties Act 2011 and
report in accordance with those Acts.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {(ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are Independent of the group and parent charitable
company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financlal statements
in the UK, Including the FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities In
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufflclent and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs {UK) require us to
report to you where:
s thetrustees’ use of the going concern basls of accounting in the preparation of the financtal statements
is not appropriate; or
e the trustees have not disclosed In the financlal statements any identifled materlal uncertaintles that
may cast significant doubt about the group’s or parent charltable company’s abllity to continue to adopt
the going concern basis of accounting for a perlod of at least twelve months from the date when the
financlal statements are authorised for Issue,
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Thdependent:Auditor’s Réportitoithe Membersiof Milton Keyres:Gommunity
Foundation Limited (continued)

‘Other‘lnfarmation

The trustees are responsible for the othier iriformation. The other thférmation comprises the Informatlon
inciuded In the Trustees’ Annual Report-other than the financlal statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our .opinlon ‘on ‘the financial statements does not cover the other Informdtion and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated In otir report, wé do not express any form of assurance concluslion thereon.

In conhection with our-audit-of thefinai¢lal statements; our: responslbillty 1s.to read the other information-and,
In dolng s0; consider-whéther:the othier Informatlon {s materlally Inconsisterit-with the finanéial stitéments or
aif” knowledge abtalried I ‘the ‘audit.or Gtherwise :appears to be mateflally misstated. ‘If we identify such
materlal Inconslstencles or: apparent mateflal-imlsstatements, wesre tequired to'determine whetherithere Is a
m,at_e_rla! misstatément In the finanélal statemenis or-a material misstatemerit of the other Information. If,based
‘on the worl-we-have ‘perféiimed; we conélude that there Is:a material nilsstatement of this ather Informatién,
Weare Fequhfe'd to feport that fact. We have nothing to report In this regard.

=0pin‘|‘oﬁslé>'ri‘ 'othen mattersiprese ;
1n our opinlon, based on the work undertaken ln the course ‘of the audlt'

¢ the lnformatlon given In the Trustees’ Report; which includes the Directors’ Report.and the Strategic

" Réport prepared for the :purposes of coifipany law;-for thie financial year for whiléh the financial

Statements-are prepared s-consistent with the finariclal statements; and

e the'Diréctors’ Report and the Strateglc Report Ihcluded Withii the’ Trigtees” Report has been prepared
i accordance with applicable legal requirements.

N

-'Matters on which we:ate régulied to:repoit by: exceptlon
n-the tht of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the pareit charitable company - -and their
envirenment obtalned In the course of the audit, we have'not Identlfled material misstatementsiin the Dlrectors

T

v

We have nothing to. report in respect-of the following matters where the: Companles Nt 2006 afid the Charltles
Act 2011 requ!re us to report to you if; in our opinion:.
o adéquate’and sufficient accounting records have not been kept by the parent charitable company, or
returns adequate for our audit have hot béen recelved from branchies ot visited by us; or
o the parentcharitable company financial statements are not In agreement with the accountirig records
and réeturns;or’
o certalndisclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by law.are not made; or

. 'we have not fecelved all the Informationand explanatlons we requlre foi: our audit e

‘Responsibilities;of trustees-

As explalned fore fully In the Statement of Trustees’ responsibilities set out'on page 24 the trustees (who are
also, the directors of the ‘charitable ‘eompany for the ‘purposes .of company law) are responsible for the
preparationi of the financlal statements and for being satisfied that they glve a true and fair view, and forsuch
internal control as the trusteés deterniine Is necessary to enable the preparation of-financlal statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Milton Keynes . Community
Foundation Limited (continued)

In preparing the flnancial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the group’s and parent
charitable company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the golng concern basis of accounting unless the trustees elther intend to liquidate the group
or parent charitable company or to cease aperations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditof’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our obectives are to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditar’s report that includes our
opinfon. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance, but Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK} will always detect a material misstatement when It exists. Misstatements can arise:
from fraud or error and are considered materlal If, Individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financlal statements.

A further description of our responsibllities for the audit of the financlal statements Is provided on the Financial
Reporting Councll’s website at http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of
our auditor’s report.

Use of ourreport

This report is made solely to the charltable company's members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companles Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable
company’s members those matters we are required ta state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibllity to anyone other than
the charltable company and the charitable company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinlons we have formed,

RSM UL A WP

SARAH MASQON (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of RSM UK AUDIT LLP, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

The Pinnacle, 170 Midsummer Boulevard

Milton Keynes’

Buckinghamshlre

MK9 1BP '

smomtezen. IO OcFober 9030

RSM UK Audit LLP Is eliglble to act as an auditor in terms of secﬁon 1212 of the Companies Act 2006

27



Milton Keynes Community Foundation Limited

Group Statement of Financial Activities (incorporating an Incore and Expenditure Account)

For the year ended 31 March 2020

Income from:

Donations and legacies

Income from other trading activities
Investment income

Charitable activities - property

Total income

Expenditure on:
Raising funds
Raising Funds
Interest payable

Total Expenditure on Raising Funds

Charitable activities
Grants made
Property activity

Total Expenditure on Charitable activities

Total Expenditure

Net gains on investments

Gains on revaluations of [nvestment Properties

Net income/(expenditure)

Transfeis

These financial statemnts were approved by the Board ¢

Funds brought forward

Funds carried forward

2020 2020 2020 2019
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

£ £ £ £
153,645 923,368 1,077,013 948,889
7,317 - 7,317 21,830
1,702,124 474,596 2,176,720 1,719,109
486,028 - 486,028 452,010
2,349,114 1,397,964 3,747,078 3,141,838
1,711,719 - 1,711_,719 1,183,300
33,652 - 33,652 42,887
1,745,371 - 1,745,371 1,226,187
652,734 1,087,984 1,740,718 1,653,865
264,098 - 264,098 664,776
916,832 1,087,984 2,004,816 2,318,641
2,662,203 1,087,984 3,750,187 3,544,828
(312,506) (405,883) (718,389) 1,029,920
1,031,075 ’ 0 1,031,075 5,025,350
405,480 (95,903) 309,577 5,652,280

(8,283) 8,283 - -

397,197 ‘(87,620‘) 309,577 5,652,280
52,772,713 14,997,208 67,769,921 62,117,641
53,169,910 14,909,588 68!079,498 67,769,921
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Milton Keynes Community Foundation Limited

Group Balance Sheet
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Note £ £
Fixed Assets
Tangible assets 8 52,551,702 51,336,244
Intangible assets 10 1,309 12,719
Investments 11 15,253,352 15,868,159

67,806,363 67,217,122
Current assets
Debtors 13 1,064,704 1,082,473
Cash at bank and in hand . 1,155,440 1,709,952

2,220,144 2,792,425
Creditors: Amounits falling due within one year 14 (947,009) (1,060,626)

Net current assets 1,273,135 1,731,799

Total assets less current liabilites 69,079,498 68,948,921

Creditors: Amounts falling due after one year 15 (1,000,000) (1,179,000)

Net assets 68,079,498 67,769,921

Funds of the charitable group

Unrestricted funds:

Community 19 2,123,596 2,757,474
Designated 19 51,046,314 50,015,239

53,169,910 52,772,713
Restricted funds 19 14,909,588 | 14,997,208

Total Funds

68,079,498 67,769,921

These financial statemnts were approved by the Board of Trustees and authorised for issue on 3 September
2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

Carole Baume
Trustee

Lawrence Revill
Chair

The accompanyitig notes form part of these financial statements.



Milton Keynes Community Foundation Limited

Charity Balance Sheet
For the year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2018
Note £ £
Fixed Assets '
Tangible assets 9 36,406,551 35,374,635
Intangible.assets 10 1,309 12,719
Investments- 11 15,253,352 15,868,159
Investmenit ih subsididry undertaking 11 400,001 400,001
52,061,213 51,655,514
Current assets
Debtors i3 1,085,679 1,194,958
‘Cash'at bank and in hand . 713,365, 920,198
1,799,044 2,115,156
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year i4 (764,618} {805,615)
Net current assets 1,034,426 1,309,541
Total assets less current liabilites 53,095,639 52,965,055
Creditors: Amounts falling due after one year 15 (1,000,000) (1,179,000)
Net assets 52,095,639 54,786,055
Funds of the charity
Unrestricted funds:
Community ' 19 1,871,777 2,505,648
Designated 19 35,314,274 34,283,199
37,186,051
Restricted funds 19 14,909,588 14,997,208
Total Funds 52,095,639 14,997,208

The charity has taken advantage of Section 408 of the Companles Act 2006 and has not included its own
income and expenditure account in these financial statements. The charity's surplus for the year was £309,584
(2019: £4,765,190). .

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees and authorised for issue on 3 Séptember

2020 and were signed on its behalf by:
‘ Conale DROu-C-

Carole Baume
Trustee

Y

Lawrence Reviil
Chair

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Milton Keynes Community Foundation Limited
Group Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Cash used in operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Proceeds on disposal of tangible fixed assets
Purchase of investments

Proceeds from sale of investments
Dividends and interest from investments

Cash from investing activities

Financing activities
Repayments of borrowings

Cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents in the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Cash at bank and in hand

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

31

Note

21

2020 2019
£ £
(673,549) (521,424)
(237,400) (16,506)
(27,076) 129,937
(3,004,548) (728,665)
2,900,966 570,456
579,595 533,737
211,537 488,959
(92,500) (157,500)
(92,500) (157,500)
(554,512) (189,965)
1,709,952 1,899,917
1,155,440 1,709,952
1,155,440 1,709,952
0
1,155,440 1,709,952




Milton Keynes Community Foundation Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

-1 Accounting policies:
The principal accounting policies adopted, judgements and key sources of estimation uincertainty in the
preparation of the financial statements-are as follows:

General information

Milton Keynes Community Foundation Limited (“the Community Foundation”) is a private company
incorporated and registered in England and Wales and limited by guarantee. The registered address is
Acorn House, 381 Midsummér Boulevard, Central Milton Keynes, MK9 3HP.

Bdsjs of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting ‘and Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Stahdard. applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102)(effective 1 January:2015)-(Charities SORP (FRS 102}), the Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK-and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) and the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements aré prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company.
Meonetary amounts in these financlal statements are rounded to the nearest £1.

Milton Keynes Community Foundation Limited meets the definition-of a public benéfit éntity under FRS
102. Assets and liabilitiés are initially recognised at historical cost or transaction value uriless otherwise
stated In therelevant accotinting policy note.

Going cancern

The Covid 19 pandemic has had a significant impact on the charity. Whilst Emergency Funding hasbeen
secured, this Is being paid out to support thé VCCS community -of Milton Keynes. At this stage we do
notfeel that our predicted funding levels will decline significantly duririg 2020/21 —but the organisation
is taking steps to ensure that costs are kept to a minimum. Our investment portfolio continues to
perform well, and the trustees have been assured that the level of return from listed investments will
not drop significantly in the next 12-18 moriths. In‘térms of our property portfolio, we are monitoring
the situation carefully, and providing support where needed to tenants to ensure that they continue to
pay their rent and service charges. A number of tenants will naturally not survive the pandemlc, and
the Trustees are contlnually monitoring the. best use of these units. Detailed planning and scenario
testing are being completed and updated regularly, so that the Trustees are able to make informed
decisions regarding the best course of action to efisure that the organisation continues to be fihancially
sound.

In spite of the current pandemic, the Trusteés are satisfied that the group’s assets attributable to each
of its funds are available and adequate to fulfil its obligations in relation to those funds: The Trustees
are confident that the Community Foundation is able to continue to meet its liabilities.as they fall due
for the foreseeable futuré and that the financial statements should be prepared on the going concern
basis.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate those of Milton Keynes Commuhity Foundation
Limited and its subsidiaries MK Community Pfoperties Limited and MKCP Limited. The results of the
trading subsidiary have been incorporated on a line-by-line basis. A separate Statement of Financial
Activities for the charity has not been presented because the group has takeh advantage of the
exemption afforded by sectuon 408-of the Companies Act 2006.

Redu;ed disclosures

The charitable company has taken advantage of the exemption from disclosing the following
information in its company only accounts, as permitted by the reduced disclosure regime within FRS
102:

- Section 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ — presentation of Cash Flow and relatéd notes and disclosures
The financial statements of the company are consolidated in these financial statements.
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Milton Keynes Community Foundation Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Voluntary income

Donations relating to a specific period and donations by deed of covenant, or under gift aid, where the
full amount has been deposited in advance are taken into income over the period to which they relate.
Where possible, gifts in kind have been quantified and included in these financial statements, in
accordance with the SORP criteria.

Any grants the Community Foundation receives towards its administration costs are included
on a receivable basis.

Donated land is recognised at market value at date of receipt.

Investment income
interest and investment income is accounted for on a receivable basis.

Property income

Property income represents rents and service charges (net of VAT) receivable on a straight-line basis
over the life of the lease. The assets for which rent is received are included in investment properties in
fixed assets. Appropriately-apportioned gains or losses on property disposals are also included in
property company income or expenditure.

Property income has been analysed between both investment income and income from charitable
activities. That element treated as investment income relates to those properties that are let on full
commiercial rental basis and that reported as income from charitabie activities relates to income from
properties let at a subsidised rent to Voluntary and Community Sector tenants.

Subsidiary company income

Property company income represents income from hire of meeting and conferencing facilities and rent
from Small Business Unlts {net of VAT) receivable on a straight-line basis. Any surplus income generated
by the subsidiary company is distributed to the MK Community Foundation as a gift aid payment within
nine months of the end of the financial year.

Expenditure
Expenditure i$ recognised when a liability s incurred.

e Expenditure on raising funds are those costs incurred in attracting voluntary income and
investment management expenses, including management of investment properties.

Expenditure on raising funds also includes the costs of the Community Foundation’s trading
subsidiary.

e Expenditure on charitable activities includes the value of grants awarded by the Community
Foundation and both the direct and support costs relating to these activities. Grants payable are
included in the Statement of Financial Activities when approved by the Trustees and accepted by
the beneficiaries. The value of such grants unpaid at the year-end is accrued. Grants where the
beneficiary has to meet certain conditions before the grant Is released are not accrued.

Expenditure on charitable activities also includes gavernance costs including those incurred in the
governance of the Community Foundation and its assets. Expenditure that can be recognised as
wholly attributable to governance costs, for example audit fees and Trustee expenses, are directly
allocated. All other costs, including staffing costs, are apportioned on the basis of an estimate of
the time spent by each member of staff 6n governance-related issues. Such costs are primarily
associated with the strategic planning processes that contribute to the future development of the
Community Foundation and its statutory requirements.
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1 Accounting palicies (continued)
- .Support costs include the administrative functions and have been allocated to actnvnty cost
categories ona basis consistent with the use of resources.
e Costs that can be recognised as being wholly associated with support activities are direcﬂy'

allocated. All other costs, including staffing costs, are apportioned on the basis of an estimate of
the tirhe spent by each member of staff.

Tanglble-'foed,ASSets

Depreciation is calculated to write down the cost of all tangible fixed assets other than freehold and
leasehold investment properties. Fixed aséets that cost £1,000 or more are capitalised and written off
over their estimated useful lives by depreciation charged, which is reflected in the Statement of
Financial Activities.

Equipment assets are depreciated on the straight-line method, at rates of between 25% and.50% per
annum and are held at cost less depreciationand impairment.

Freehold and léaséhold investment. propértles-
The investment properties are held for fong-term investment and are mcluded in the group balance
sheet at their open market values,

The surpluses or deficits oh the revaluation of such properties are transferred to the Designated
Property Fund. Depreciation is notprovided in respect of investment pi{opertj'es.

Intangible Fixed Assets

Intangible fixed assets relate to website costs. Amortisation is calculated to write ‘down the cost-of:all
intangible fixed assets from the date they are brought into use. The rate of amortisation is 33% straight
line.

.Fixed Asset Ihvestments

Investments are stated at their market valuation at the balance sheet date. Both realised and unrealised
gains or losses are reflected in the'Statement of Financial Activities. An exception to thisis the valuation
of the wholly owned subsidiary company, MK Commuhity Properties Limited. This is held at the historic
cost of the shares purchased in the company. Social Invéstments are held at their estimated market
value.

Fund accounting.

Unrestricted funds are donations and other income received or generated for expenditure on the
general objectives ‘of the group. Designated funds are unrestricted funds that have béen designated
for specific purpeses by the Trustees.

‘Restricted funds are to be used for specified purposes lald down by the donor. Expenditure for those
purposes is charged to the fund, together with a fair allocation of overheads and support costs where
appropriate.

Findncial Instruments

The organisation only has financial assets'and financial I'iab'ilit'ie; of a kind that qualify as basic financial
instruments. Basic financial instrumeénts are initially recognised as transaction value and subsequently
measured at their settlement value with the exception of bank-loans which are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Leasing accounting

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the statement of financial activities on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.
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1 Accounting policies {continued)
Pénsions

On 1 June 2015 the organisation began operation of a pension scheme under the auto enrolment
provisions. The scheme Is managed by Royal London on behalf of the organisation. The scheme is
accounted for as a defined contribution scheme.

The contributions made for the accounting period are treated as an expense and were £12,909 (2019:
£10,867). Amounts payable at the year end are included within Other Creditors.

Taxation

No provision for corparation tax has been made in these financial statements because the Community
Foundation, a registered charity, is exempt from taxation.

All expenditure is classified under activity headings that aggregate all costs related to the category.
Irrecoverable VAT is charged against the category of resources expended for which it is incurred.

Accounting for grants

Grants are included in the financial statements as they are awarded. If grants awarded over multiple
years have conditions attached to future year elements, then these future year elements will not be
included in the figure for grants awarded unléss all conditions have been met by the financial year end
or payment of the grant is otherwise probable.

Critical acéounting estimates and judgements

The charitable group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, not always equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are those used in estimating the market value of
investment properties. These estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. '

In the application of the group’s accounting policies, the Trustees are required to make judgements.
‘The key judgement relates to the classification of the property portfolio. The Trustees have considered
whether the group’s portfolio of properties should be accounted for as tangible fixed assets or as
investment properties. Many of the properties are available on occasion to be rented to the charity’s
beneficiaries at subsidised rents. However, the Trustees consider that the properties are primarily held
for fong term investment with the objective of generating financial income and/or proceeds from their
sale to maximise a surplus which can be used to make grants or to support the voluntary and community
sector through subsidised rent. Accordingly, the Trustees consider that the properties are investment
properties and that any changes in their value should be recognised as gains or losses on investment
properties. However, any rental Income which is generated by properties let at subsidised rates is
recognised as income from charitable activities rather than investment income to reflect the objectives
of the charity.
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2. Income from Donations and Legacies

Unrestricted Restricted Total  Unrestricted Restricted Total

Funds Funds 2020 Funds Funds 2019

£ £ £ £ £ £

Donations receivéd 40,262 923,368 963,630 79,861 727,021 806,882

Donations in kind 33,319 - 33,319 38,725 - 38,725

Fuding from Government agencies - : - - 13,310 13,310

Grants received for administration 80,064, - 80,064 89,972 - ' 89,972
costs

153,645 923,368 1,077,013 208,558 740,331 948,889

Donations received in'kind are valued on the basis that such services were purchased as a commeicial transaction on an arms
lenth basis. All such donations have been included as unrestricted income and are analysed in the table below:

Unrestricted

Total
2020
£
Membership and other donations:
‘MKFM Membership -
Training and Adviser workshop -
Community Car Raffle
Site 15,000
1st Prize 17,000
Marketing 1,319
Presentation.evening , -
33,319
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Unrestricted

Total -

2019
£

1,000
2,363
3,363
15,000
14,275

1,219
4,868

38,725
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N

3. Income from Investments

Income from investments comprises income from:

Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total
Funds Funds 2020 Funds Funds 2019
£ £ £ £ £ £
Listed Investments 104,154 474,596 578,750 72,571 460,362 532,933
Property investments 913,771 - 913,771 512,769 - 512,769
Trading subsidiary turnover 684,199 - 684,199 673,407 - 673,407
1,702,124 474,596 2,176,720 1,258,747 460,362 1,719,109
4. Income from charitable activities
Income from charitable activities is all unrestricted and comprises income from:
Unrestricted Unrestricted
Total Total
2020 2019
£ £
Property rental and servlce>charge income 486,028 452,010
486,028 452,010
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5. Allocation of costs and overheads

The breakdown of support costs between costs of raising funds, governance costs and the costs of charitable activities Is shown in the table below.

Property  Staff related Investment Apportioned
‘costs costs expenses  Auditfees Other costs costs  Total2020  Total 2019
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Expenditure on ralsing funds; .

Costs of ralsing funds - 200,423 - - 73,912 131,434 405,769 309,065
Fundralsing trading - 17,257 - - - 7,063 19,320 13,061
Investment managément 1,280,455 2,212 3,042 - - 921 1,286,630 861,174
Charltable activities (note &) 264,098 182,247 - - 123,988 106,252 676,585 990,824
Governancé (note 6} - 92,955 - 25,640 - 61,418 180,013 - 151,085
1,544,553 490,094 3,042 25,640 197,900 307,088 2,568,317 2,325,209

Property casts shown here represent the cost.6f managing and malntalhing our extensive property portfolio.

Costs that can be recognised as wholly attributable to one of the above categories aré directly allocated: All other costs, including staff.costs, are
‘apportioned on the basis of an estimate of the time spent by each member of staff within the category. The-allocation of staff time across varlous projects
changes from year to year depending on the factors identifled and agreed by the Board. Staff costs have been apportioned as follows:

Role Cost of raising| Property Fu n.dralsi'hg h/llr::zsgt;nn?::_t ‘Z‘:JE:Z‘: Governance
funds costs trading costs Su'ppért- costs -€osts
Chief Executive 10% 33% - 1% 26% 30%
Director of Marketing & Buslness Development 58% 5% 6% 0% 29% 2%
Director of Finance 21% 30% 1% 1% 4% 43%
Philanthropy Directors 79% 5% - - 11% 5%
Executive Assistant 10% 15% - - 9% 66%
Financla! Controller 21% 0% 4% 1% 35% 39%
Philanthropy Managers 49%. - 1% - 50% -
Conferenclng Staff - 100% - - - -
Administrative Assistants 12% - - - 10% 78%
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6. Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities

The Community Foundation undertakes its charitable activities through grant making. In the year ended 31 March 2020 it awarded grants
totalling £1,148,218 (2019: £1,176,732) to a number of voluntary and community groups and individuals in furtherance of its charitable
actlvities (See Note 20). it also pald £7,317 (2019: £11,156) to groups which supported the Community Car Raffle.

The main alm of the Community Foundation's subsidiary company, MK Community Properties Limited, is to support the Voluntary Sector in
Milton Keynes, either through subsidised Conference and Meeting Room provision or indirectly through surpluses generated.

Charitable Support Governance Charitable Support Governance
Activities Costs * costs **  Total 2020  Activitles Costs * costs **  Total 2019
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Grants-awarded 1,148,218 412,487 180,013 1,740,718 1,176,732 326,048 151,085 1,653,865
Property costs (note 5) 264,098 - - 264,098 664,776 - - 664,776

1,412,316 412,487 180,013 2,004,816 1,841,508 326,048 151,085 2,318,641

Expenditure on charitable activities includes restricted expenditure of £1,087,982 (2019: £2,184,046) and unrestricted expenditure of
£916,832 (2019: £1,134,595).

* Support costs represerit corporate overheads such as: staff related costs, administrative costs relating to grants awarded and apportioned
costs relating to consultancy, recruitment, IT support, membership fees, insurance and other office running costs.

** Governance costs represent: audit fees, legal and professional costs, recruitment costs, trustee liability insurance costs, staff related costs
and office costs.
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7. Analysis of staff costs, Trustee remuneration and expenses, and the cost of key management personnel

2020 2019
£ £
Salary related costs )
Wages and salaries 622,028 512,686
Social security costs 56,427 46,784
Employer pension contributions 12,909 10,867
691,364 570,337

1 employeé earned between £70,001 and £80,000 (2019: £60,001 to £70,000: 1).

The averdge number of employees was 23.3 {2019: 19.9), excluding Trustees. This can be analysed as follows:

2020 2018
Number Number
. Salary related costs

Marketing and Fund Development 4,1 4,1
Charitable activitles 4.2 2.8
Operations 8.6 7.2
Finance and Governance 6.4 5.8
233 19.9

No Trustee recelved any remuneration during the year (2019: £nilj. Child care costs amouriting £Nil (2019: £30) were relmbursed to no
{2019: one) Trustee to enable them to attend a function. Travel expenses reimbursed to trustees amounted to £20 (2019: Nil)

The total key management personnel of the parent charity comprise the Trustees.and the Senior Executive Team, as disclosed on page 3.
The employee benefits.of the key management personnel were £273,765 (2019: £184,307), inciuding employer's national insurance of
£27,531 {2019: £18,190). The key management personpel for'the group are the same as for the charity.

79% 5%
8. Net income for the year
This is stated after charging/(crediting):-

2020 2019

£ £

Auditors' remuneration.includes:
Audit 15,000 15,000
Other services relating to taxation 3,800 2,450
All'other non-audit services’ 7,415 19,020
Depreciation 52,774 48,722
Amortisation 11,420 11,410
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets 244 409,500
Interest on bank deposits ‘ (3,587) (4,397)
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9. Tangible Assets

The Group

Cost or valuation

At 1 Aprit 2019
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year
Revaluation

At 31 March 2020

Depreciation

At 1 April 2019
Provided in the year
On Disposals

At 31 March 2020

Net book value
At 31 March 2020

At 31 March 2019

Leasehold
Investment
Freehold Properties held
Investment on long lease >
properties 50 years Equipment Total
£ £ £ £
49,880,250 1,398,500 623,450 51,902,200
- - 237,400 237,400
- - (488) (488)
823,700 207,375 - 1,031,075
50,703,950 1,605,875 860,362 53,170,187
- - 565,956 565,956
. - 52,774 52,774
- - (245) (245)
- - 618,485 618,485
50,703,950 1,605,875 241,877 52,551,702
49,880,250 1,398,500 57,494 51,336,244

The depreciation charge for the year is apportioned between expenditure on raising funds, grants made

and property activity.
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9. Tangible Assets (continued)

The Company

Cost or valuation -

At 1 April 2019

Additions during the year
Disposals during the year
Revaluation

At 31 March 2020

Depreciation

At 1 April 2019
Provided in the year
On disposals

At 31 March 2020
Net book value

At 31 March 2020

At 31 March 2019

Leasehold
Investment
Freehold Properties held
Investment on long lease >
properties 50 years Equipment Total
£ £ £ £
33,967,710 1,398,500 36,083 35,402,293
- - 5,055 5,055
- - (488) (488)
823,700 207,375 - 1,031,075
34,791,410 1,605,875 40,650 36,437,935
- - 27,658 27,658
- - 3,971 3,971
- - (245) (245)
- - 31,384 31,384
34,791,410 1,605,875 9,266 36,406,551
33,967,710 1,398,500 8,425 35,374,635

The investment properties were valued at 31 December 2019 by external valuers, Robinson Hall,
Chartered Surveyars, on the basis of open market value in.accordance with the appraisal and valuation
manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. The valuation approach is as described in the RICS
Information Paper "Comparable Evidence in Property Valuation". The Trustees are of the opinion that
there has been no material moveiment'ini value of these properties between that date and 31 March 2020.

The historical cost of the properties is £2,994,979 (2019: £2,994,979).

79% #

The depreciation charge for the year is apportioned between expenditure on raising funds, grants made

and property activity.
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10. Intangible assets

The Group and the Company

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2019
Additions

At 31 March 2020
Amortisation

At 1 April 2019
Amortisation for the year

At31 March 2020
Net book value

At 31 March 2020

At 31 March 2019

Website

£

34,577

34,577

21,858
11,410

33,268

1,309

12,719

The amortisatian charge for the year is apportioned between expenditure on raising funds, grants made and property

activity.
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11. Investments

The Grbup and Company

During the year the unrestricted endowment fuhd, which was held in a segregated fund, managed by UBS AG was
placed with CCLA in their Charities Ethical Common Investment Fund. This amounted to £2,865,195. In addition to
this, a further £62,038 of funds were placed with CCLA in their Charities Ethical Common Investment Fund (2019:.
£29,616). At 31 March 2020 these funds had an open market value of £15,243,352 (2019: £13,017,034 ). Total funds
invested with CCLA represented.99.9% {2019: 82.4% ) of the total investment poftfolio. The Community Foundation
still holds a direct equity holding of £10,000 in Future Wolverton to help fund a social enterprise project in the city.

These investments are analysed as follows:

Equities

Common Investment Funds
Corporate Bonds
Cash/Deposits

Listed Investments
Social Investments

Listed Investments

Valuation at 1 April

Additions

Disposals

(Decrease)/Increase in market value during the year

Valuation at 31 March

2020 2019
Total Total
£ £
- "1,693,252.
15,243,352 13,017,034
- 662,882
- 484,991
15,243,352 15,858,159
10,000 10,000
15,253,352 15,868,159,
2020 2019
Total Total
£ £
15,129,494 14,670,030
3,004,548 # 0
(2,900,966) (584,747)
(718,389) 1,044,211
14,514,687 15,129,494

The historical cost of investments held at 31 March 2020 was £12,996,114 (2019: £12,372,667 ).
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11. Investments (continued)

The Company
Investments in subsidiary undertakings

£

Cost at 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 400,001

The company owns 100% of the ordinary share capital, comprising 400,000 ordinary shares of £1 each in MK
Community Properties Limited, which is registered in England and Wales and was incorporated on 2 October 1991. It
traded throughout the year as a provider of Meeting and Conference Facilities and Small Busihess Units. The
company also owns 100% of the ordinary share capital, comprising 1 £1 ordinary share in MKCP Limited, which is
registered in England and Wales and was incorparated on 3 March 2015. The company has been dormant since
incorporation.

The address of the Company's subsidiary undertakings is Acorn House, 381 Midsummer Boulevard, Milton Keynes,
Buckinghamshire, England, MK9 3HP.
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12. Subsidiary undertakings

‘The charitable company's wholly-owned trading subsldiary incorporated in England and Wales, MK Community Properties
Limited (company number-2650530) manages Conference and Meeting Roomis as well as 56 Small Business Units, aiming to
support the Voluntary Sector in Milton Keynes, either directly through subsidised room hire and small 'easy in easy out’
office space or indirectly through surplus income‘which is distributed as gift aid to Milton Keynes Community Foundation.

A'summary of its trading results is shown below.

Profit and loss account Unrestricted Unrestricted
Total Total

2020 2019

£ £

Turnover 684,627 676,929
Cost of sales (131,184) (82,806)
Gross profit 553,443 594,123
Administration expenses (531,712) (465,267)
Revaluation of Investment Properties 0 757,740
Trading profit 21,731 886,596
Net interest 4,511 502
Profit for the financial year 23,292 887,098

Balance Sheet

Tangible assets 16,145,151 15,961,609
Net current assets 238,716 1 0
Total net assets 16,383,867 15,961,609
Called up share capital 400,000 400,000
Investment property revaluation reserve »15,912,540 15,912,540
Profit and loss account 71,327 71,327
Total 16,383,867 16,383,867
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13. Debtors

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£ £ £ £
Trade debtors 154,236 160,708 92,021 71,812
Accrued Income 535,675 441,395 535,000 437,461
Other debtors and prepayments 372,527 463,514 371,789 360,589
Social security and other taxes 2,266 16,856 2,266 16,856
Due from subsidiary company - - 84,603 308,240

1,064,704 1,082,473 1,085,679 1,194,958

Included in debtors is £26,665 (2019: £53,110) relating to sales proceeds of Community Foundation Land which is due in riore than
one year.

14. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£ £ £ £
Trade creditors 95,833 189,628 26,644 78,814
Social security and other taxes 12,644 24,847 16,046 966
Other creditors 170,492 201,110 73,286 105,436
Deferred income 112,066 175,981 93,243 151,913
Accruals 219,870 178,561 219,295 177,986
Grants payable 336,104 290,499 336,104 290,499
Due to subsidiary company - - - 1
947,009 1,060,626 764,618 805,615
At31 March 2020 there were no outstanding pension contributions (2019: £nil). 1
Deferred income represents Rent and Service Charge income received in advance Group Company
£ £
Balance as at'1 Aprll 2019 175,981 151,913
Amount released to income in the year (175,981) (151,913)
Amount deferred in the year 112,066 93,243
Balance as at 31 March 2020 112,066 93,243
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15. Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

‘The Group and Company Total Total
2020 2019
£ £

Due within two to five years:

Bank loan 1,000,000 1,092,50Q
Grants payable - 86,500

1,000,000 1,179,000

On 31 March 2015, as part of the group re-organisation, a loan was taken out with Handelsbanken for.£1.25M. The loan
was fixed at 2.06% for three years followed by a variable rate of 2.35% over 3M Libor for a further two years. At 31
March 2018 there was a break clause enabling the Community Fouhdation to repay the fixed loan without penalty. On 3
April 2018 the loah was renewed. Under the new loan agreement there is a loan of £1,000,000 which ison d fixed rate
of 3.65% until maturity at 6 April 2021 and a loan of £250,000 which is or a 'va‘riable rate of 2.42% over LIBOR over three
years. The loan is secuted by a fiXed charge over Margaret Powell House, Acorn House and the units-in Burners Lane,
Stacey Bushes. The carrying value of these properties is £11,540,000 (2019: £11,250,000).

16. Contingent liabilities

Under the arrangements surrounding the transfer on 27 November 1992 of certain properties from English
Partnerships, previously known as the Commission for the New Towns, the grotp is under a canitractual obligation to
repay amounts to English Partnerships ("clawback") in respect of the net capital gains arising on certain disposals-or
change of use'in relation to elther Community Related Assets (certain industrial units at Kiln Farm, Stacey Biishes and
Number 56 Buckingham Street Wolverton) or Community Foundation Land sites {32 undeveloped and 1.developed

Based on the open market value, as at 31 March 2020 the total potential liability for the clawback was £21,865,640
{2019: £20,370,840). No provision has been made for deferred tax that may arise if the properties were sold in the
future. It is-the Trustees" apinion that no tax would arise on afuture sale of the properties as any profits from'such sale
would be distributed via Gift Aid to the company's charitable parent Milton Keynes Community Foundation from its
subsidiary company, MK Community Properties Limited. Milton Keynes Community Foundation is part of a VAT group
with its subsidiary, MK Community Properties, and is therefore jointly liable for any VAT debts of MK Community
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17. Related party transactions

A number of Trustees, as well as being individual members of the Community Foundation, are assoclated with organisations that are corporate
members of the Community Foundation. Total individual donations recelved from Trustees in the year amounted to £1,172 (2019: £1,878). Nelther the
Trustees nor their associated organisations derive any benefit as a result of their membership of the Community Foundation.

Furthermore, as mentloned previously in this report, the Community Foundation is also able to support the not-for-profit sector in Milton Keynes
through the provision of properties that are let on preferential terms. The amount of this subsidy, the difference between the full commercial rental
and the subsidised rent paid by the not-for-profit sector tenants, is in excess of £1,243,000 per annum for the year to 31 March 2020 (2019:
£1,151,000). Three Trustees worked for or were Trustees of organlisations that currently receive subsidised accomodation, namely:

. Mrs F Komolafe, Into the Community (ITC) and Fresh Inspiration (1)

Priar to providing subsidlsed accomodation, a process Is in place to assess the client to ensure that they are providing services that match the needs of
the community. :

Set out below is a summary of the amounts that were charged to related parties during the financial year and the amounts that remain outstanding as
.at 31 March 2020.

2020 2020 2019 2019

Fi ITC Fl ITC

£ £ £ £

Rent 1,475 4,625 670 4,625

Service charge/ insurance 1,799 2,681 1,176 1,136
Car parking etc. 700 - 467 -
Meeting rooms etc. - « - -

Total charges 3,974 7,306 2,313 5,761

Balance due/ {to) tenant at 31 March 2020 572 (665) {(210) (1,315)

During the year Miiton Keynes Community Foundation Limited charged rent and service charges to MK Community Properties Limited In the sum of
£259,643 (2019: £239,532). Milton Keynes Community Foundation Limited purchased room hire and catering services from MK Cammunity Praperties
Limited during the year amounting to £428 (2018: £3,522). These transactions have been removed on consolidation.

During the year, grants totalling £66,200 (2019: £10,632) were awarded to MK Gallery Enterprises {of which K Chadwick, a Trustee, is a director), grants
totalling £Nil (2019: £2,500) were awarded to Thames Valley Partnership (of which Mrs F Komolafe, a Trustee, Is a trustee) and grants totalling £5,000
(2019: Nil) were awared to Trubys Garden Tea Rooms (of which Mrs K Mirza, a Trustee, Is a Trustee). There were no outstanding balances with either
related party at the year end (2019: £nil).

18. Indemnity Insurance 79% 5%

The group has purchased Insurance for the Trustees and staff of the charity and the directors of the subsidiary company, MK Community Properties
Limited, against liability arising for wrongfut acts in relation to the charity and its wholly owned subslidlary. The cost of this insurarnice amounts to
£2,213 (2019: £2,008). ’

19. Accumulated Funds

Milton Keynes Community Foundation malntains a number of separate funds, the moverrients in which are detailed in notes 19.4 to 19.6 below and
the net assets of which are analysed in notes 19.7 to 19.9 below. Monies held in funds can be either flow-through {monles donated in‘one year are
spent in the next along with any Investment income earned) or endowment {(monies are held in the fund untif the fund reaches an agreed level at
which time the annual Income on the fund balance is spent).

Detalls of the funds are as follows:

Unrestricted fund

19.1 Community Fund £2,123,596

This fund is the main fund of the Community Foundation into which the majority of donations are made. Most grants are paid out of this fund and the
majarity of the administration costs'are borne by this fund. Interest and investment income is added to this fund as earned.

Deslgnated funds

19.2 Property Fund £51,046,314

This fund represents the net book value of the freehold and Jeasehold properties owned by the group, less mortgages raised to purchase properties,
together with a reserve towards future property maintenance.

Restricted funds
19.3 Various £14,909,588
Detalls of the various réstricted funds can be found in notes 19.4 to 19.6.
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19. Accumufated Funds (continued)

19.4 Accumiulated Funds-- Analysls of Revaluation
group income and expehdiiure - current of
year Balance at JInvestment Balance at
01/04/18 Income Transfers Assets Expenditure 31/03/20
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted funds
Community " 2,757,474 2,349,114 (8,283) (312,506) (2,662,203 2,123,596
Deslgnated - Property 50,015,239 - - 1,031,075 - 51,046,314
Total unrestricted funds 52,772,713 2,349,114 (8,283) 718,569 (2,662,203) 53,169,910
Restricted funds
Arts Fund 393,463 19,045 - (12,831) (11,487) 388,190
Sport Rellef Fund 4,554 - (13) - (2,200) 2,341
Margaret Powell {Grants) 43 299 - . © 14 356
MK DASS Fund 292,324 9,798 - (8,131) (6,974) 287,017
RSM Fund 452 561 - - - 1,013
Women's Fund : 30,102 1,146 (550) (771) (878) 29,049
thecentre:mk Fund 5,000 - 6,000 - {6,050} 4,950
NiftyLift Fund 41,206 3,212 214 (1,101) (1,926) 41,605
Family Funds 152,337 13,128 (382) (4,570) (6,055) 154,458
Edward Hurley Memorial Fund 270,218 9,381 - {7,784) {9,399) 262,416
Grassroots Endowment Fund 861,377 29,617 550 (258) (12,571) 878,715
Shoosiniths Fund 2,756 2 - “ (1,329) 1,429
Surviving Winter 30,688 3,918 - - (6,541} 28,065
Open University Fund 221 - - - - 221
Local Giving 91,423 278,578 - - (292,499) 77,502
New Communities Funds 234,524 L. - - (3,220) 231,304
Jubilee Sports Fund 628 4,504 13 - {540) 4,605
Community First EMC 11,984,812 475,456 (214) (360,198) (496,691) 11,603,165
Hopkinson:Music Fund 65,114 2,218 - {1,840) - 65,492
Coventry Bullding Society Fund - 1,286 - L (1,285) 1
VW Fund 11,064 10,000 - - (9,673) 11,391
Music Centre Fund 10,365 - - - (237) 10,128
Business Leaders Fund 10,277 5,003 - - (550) 14,730
Big Lacal Conniburrow Fund 115,867 - - - (76,934) 38,933
Great Linford Waterslide Festival Fund 38,170 1,320 - (1,095) (330) 38,065
Prevention of Crime Fund 7,224 1,247 750 - (4,780) 4,441
Rainscourt Fund 10,703 5,000 - - (7,260) 8,443
Tony Byrne Financial Services Fund 26,637 10,707 - {993) {2,200) 34,151
Youth'Social Action Fund 10,173 11,000 - - (7,900) 13;273
Bramwell Fund 15,277 940 - - (12,029) 4,188
Chichley Fund 34,640 6,824 - (843) (2,099} 38,522
ICAEW Social Mobility Fund 29,912 - - - (8,806) 21,106
Netherfleld Children Centre Legacy Fund 1 - - - - 1
New City Fund 3,656 250 1,915 - - 5,821
Tampon Tax Fund - 12,949 - - (10,934) 2,015
Natlonal Lottery Fund 212,000 - - - (36,300) 175,700
Oiney Education Trust - 6,501 - - - 6,501
Beadle Fund - 51,232 - (5,468) : 45,764
MK Council 2050 Fund - 150,000 - - (22,887) 127,113
Watercare Fund - 15,000 - - (8,385) 6,615
TVP - Violent Crime Reduction - 40,000 - - (5,500} 34,500
Covid 19 Emergency Response : - 50,842 - - (344) 50,498
MK Christian Centre Fund - 40,000 - - (11,205) 28,795
Norman Hawes Memorial Trust - 127,000 - - - 127,000
Total restricted funds 14,997,208 1,397,964 8,283 {405,883) (1,087,984) 14,909,588
Yotal funds 67,769,921 3,747,078 - 312,686 (3,750,187) 68,079,498
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18. Accumulated Funds (continued)

19.5 Accumulated Funds - Analysis of
charlity income and éxpenditure - current
year

Unrestricted funds
Communlty
Designated - Property

Total unrestricted funds

Restricted funds

Arts Fund

Sport Relief Fund

Margaret Powell {Grants)

MK DASS Fund

RSM Fund

Women's Fund

thecentre:mk Fund

NiftyUift Fund

Family Funds

Edward Hurley Memorlal Fund
Grassroots Endowment Fund
Shoosmiths Fund

Surviving Winter

Open Unlversity Fund

Local Giving

New Communlties Funds
Jubllee Sports Fund
Community First EMC
Hopkinson Music Fund
Coventry Bullding Soclety Fund
VW Fund

Music Centre Fund

Buslness Leaders Fund

Big Local Connlburrow Fund
Great Linford Waterslide Festival Fund
Prevention of Crime Fund
Rainscourt Fund

Tony Byrne Financial Services Fund
Youth Social Action Fund
Bramwell Fund

Chichley Fund

ICAEW Social Mobility Fund
Netherfield Children Centre Legacy Fund
New City Fund

Tampon Tax Fund

National Lottery Fund

Otney Education Trust

Beadie Fund

MK Councll 2050 Fund
Watercare Fund

TVP - Violent Crime Reduction
Covid 19 Emergency Response
MK Christian Centre Fund
Norman Hawes Memorial Trust

Total restricted funds

Total funds

Revaluation

of
Balance at investment Balance at
01/04/19 Income Transfers Assets Expenditure 31/03/20
£ £ £ £ £ £
2,505,648 1,687,312 (8,283) {312,506) (2,000,394) 1,871,777
34,283,199 - - 1,031,075 - 35,314,274
36,788,847 1,687,312 (8,283) 718,569 {2,000,394) 37,186,051
393,463 19,045 - (12,831) (11,487) 388,150
4,554 - (13) - (2,200) 2,341
43 299 - - 14 356
292,324 9,798 - (8,131) {6,974) 287,017
452 561 - - - 1,013
30,102 1,146 (550} (771) {878) 29,049
5,000 - 6,000 - {6,050) 4,950
41,206 3,212 ‘214 {1,101) {1,926) " 41,605
152,337 i3,128 {382) (4,570) (6,055) 154,458
270,218 9,381 - (7,784) (9,399) 262,416
861,377 29,617 550 (258) (12,571) 878,715
2,756 2 . - (1,329) 1,429
30,688 3,918 - - (6,541) 28,065
221 - - - - 221
91,423 278,578 - - (292,439) 77,502
234,524 - - - (3,220) 231,304
628 4,504 13 - {540) 4,605
11,984,812 475,456 (214) {360,198) (496,691) 11,603,165
65,114 2,218 - (1,840) - 65,492
- 1,286 - - (1,285) 1
11,064 10,000 - - {9,673) 11,391
10,365 - - - (237) 10,128
10,277 5,003 - - {550) 14,730
115,867 1# - - {76,934} 38,934
38,170 1,320 - {1,095) (330) 38,065
7,224 1,247 750 - {4,780) 4,441
10,703 5,000 - - (7,260) 8,443
26,637 10,707 - (993) (2,200) 34,151
10,173 11,000 - - {7,900) 13,273
15,277 940 - - {12,029) 4,188
34,640 6,824 - (843) (2,099) 38,522
29,912 - - - (8,806) 21,106
1 - - - - 1
3,656 250 1,915 - - 5,821
- 12,949 - - {10,934) 2,015
212,000 - - - (36,300) 175,700
- 6,501 - - - 6,501
- 51,232 - (5,468) - 45,764
- 150,000 - - (22,887) 127,113
- 15,000 - - {8,385) 6,615
- 40,000 - - (5,500) 34,500
- 50,842 - - (344) 50,498
- 40,000 - - (14,205) 28,795
- 127,000 - - - 127,000
14,997,208 1,397,965 8,283 (405,883) {1,087,984) 14,909,589
51,786,055 3,085,277 - 312,686 {3,088,378) 52,095,640
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19. Accumulated Funds (continued)

19.6 Accumulated Funds - Analysfs of Revaluation
group income and expenditure - prior year of
A Balance at Investment Balance at
01/04/18 Income Transfers Assets Expenditure 31/03/19
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted funds:
Community 2,721,373 1,941,145 (14,692) 60,930 (1,951,282) 2,757,474
Deslgnated - Property 45,399,389 - - 5,025,350 (409,500) '50{015,239
Total unrestricted funds 48,120,762 1,941,145 {14,692} 5,086,280 (2,360,782) 52,772,713
Restricted funds
Arts Fund 366,664 18,527 470 31,842 (23,100) 393,463
Sport Relief Fund 4,541 13 - - - 4,554
Margaret Powell {Grants) 1,143 - - - (1,100) 43
MK DASS Fund 262,504 9,643 - 20,177 292,324
RSM Fund 685 451 - - {684) 452
Women's Fund 27,545 2,677 - 1,914 (2,034) 30,102
thecentre:mk Fund - - 5,000 - - 5,000
NiftyLift Fund 40,719 3,226 - 2,732 (5,471) 41,206
Faniily Funds 148,744 23,376 - 9,411 (29,194) 152,337
Edward Hurley Memorial Fund 249,545 9,234 - 19,319 {7,880) -270,218
Grassroots Endowment Fund 801,809 29,151 - 60,978 (30,561) ‘861,377
Shoosmiths Fund 10,002 1,415 - - (8,661) 2,756
Surviving Winter 32,351 5,853 - - (7,516) 30,688
Open University Fund 1,563 - - - (1,342) 221
Local Giving 65,423 324,932 - - (298,932) 91,423
New Communities Funds 389,011 (97,073) - - (57,414) 234,524
Jubilee Sports Fund 1,442 628 - - (1,442) '628
Community First EMC 11,043,983 404,643 - 812,304 (276,118) 11,984,812
Hopkinson Music Fund 60,014 2,183 - 4,567 (1,650} 65,114
‘Coventry Bullding Society Fund 1,286 - - - (1,286) -
VW Fund 15,944 10,000 - - (14,880) 11,064
Music Centre Fund 10,365 - - - - 10,365
Business Leaders Fund 12,188 3,702 - - (5,613) 10,277
Big Local Conniburrow Fund 202,501 86,244 - - (172,878) 115,867
Great Linford Waterslide Féstival Fund 35,033 1,299 - 2,718 (880) 38,170
Prevention of Crime Fund 12,724 - - - {5,500) 7,224
Rainscourt Fund 7,825 6,250 - - (3,372) 10,703
Toity Byrne Financial Services Fund 17,321 10,526 - 990 (2',200) 26,637
Youth Social Actlon Fund 16,958 11,000 - - {17,785) 10,173
Bramweli Fund 16,150 11,250 - - (12,123} 15,277
Chichley Fund 35,326 9,015 - 2,038 {11,739) 34,640
CCG Fund 8,033 - - - (8,033) -
ICAEW Sotial Mobility Fund 97,250 - - - (67,338) 29,912
Netherfield Children Centre Legacy Fund 287 - - - (286) 1
Heald Solicitors Fund - - 4,400 - {4,400) -
New City Fund - - 5,762 - (2,106) 3,656
Tampon Tax Fund - 12,528 - - (12,528) -
National Lottery Fund - 300,000 - - (88,000) 212,000
Total restricted funds 13,996,879 1,200,693 14,692 968,990 (1,184,046) '14,997,208
Total funds 62,117,641 3,141,838 - 6,055,270 (3,544,828) 67,769,921
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19, Accumulated Funds (confinued)

19.7 Accumulated Funds - Analysis of
group net assets - current year

Unrestricted funds
Community
Designated - Property

Total unrestricted funds

Restricted funds

Arts Fund

Sport Relief Fund

Margaret Powell (Grants)

MK DASS Fund

RSM Fund

Women's Fund

thecentre:mk Fund

NiftyLift Fund

Family Funds

Edward Hurley Memorial Fund
Grassroots Endowment Fund
Shoosmiths Fund

Surviving Winter

Open University Fund

Local Glving

New Communities Funds
Jubilee Sports Fund
Community First EMC
Hopkinson Music Fund
Coventry Building Society Fund
VW Fund

Music Centre Fund

Business Leaders Fund

Big Lacal Conniburrow Fund
Great Linford Waterslide Festlval Fund
Prevention of Crime Fund
Ralnscourt Fund

Tony Byrne Financial Services Fund
Youth Soclal Action Fund
Bramwell Fund

Chichley Fund

ICAEW Social Mobility Fund
Netherfield Children Centre Legacy Fund
New City Fund

Tampon Tax Fund

Natianal Lattery Fund

Olney Education Trust

Beadle Fund

MK Council 2050 Fund
Watercare Fund

TVP - Violent Crime Reduction
Covid 19 Emergency Response
MK Christian Centre Fund
Norman Hawes Memorial Trust

Total restricted funds

Total finds

Net Current

Assets/ Long Term
Fixed Assets Investments {Liabllitles) Liabiiities Total
£ £ £ £ £
243,186 2,502,853 {622,443) - 2,123,596
52,309,825 - (263,511)  {1,000,000) 51,046,314
52,553,011 2,502,853 (885,954)  {1,000,000) 53,169,910
- 414,135 {25,945) - 388,190
- - 2,341 - 2,341
- - 356 - 356
- 262,415 24,602 - 287,017
- - 1,013 - 1,013
- 24,897 4,152 - 29,049
. - 4,950 - 4,950
- 35,533 6,072 - 41,605
- 134,416 20,042 - 154,458
- 251,257 11,159 - 262,416
- 793,245 85,470 - 878,715
. - 1,429 - 1,429
- - 28,065 - 28,065
- - 221 - 221
- - 77,502 - 77,502
- - 231,304 - 231,304
- - 4,605 - 4,605
- 10,647,114 956,051 - 11,603,165
- 59,408 6,084 - 65,492
- - 1 - 1
- - 11,391 - 11,391
- - 10,128 - 10,128
- - 14,730 - 14,730
- - 38,933 - 38,933
- 1 38,064 - 38,065
- - 4,441 - 4,441
- - 8,443 - 8,443
- 21,129 13,022 - 34,151
- Co. 13,273 - 13,273
- - 4,188 - 4,188
- 27,062 11,460 - 38,522
- - 21,106 - 21,106
- - 1 - ' 1
- - 5,821 - 5,821
- - 2,015 - 2,015
- - 175,700 - 175,700
- - 6,501 - 6,501
- 44,532 1,232 - 45,764
- - 127,113 - 127,113
- - 6,615 - 6,615
- - 34,500 - 34,500
- - 50,498 - 50,498
- - 28,795 - 28,795
- - 127,000 - 127,000
- 12,715,143 2,194,445 - 14,809,588
52,553,011 15,217,996 1,308,491 (1,000,000) 68,079,498
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19. Accumulated Funds (contlnued)

19.8 Accumulated Funds - Analysis of
company net assets - curreni‘ye'ar

Unrestricted funds
‘Commun'ity
Designated - Property

Total unrestricted funds

Restricted funds

Arts Fund

Sport Rellef Fund

Margaret Powell (Grants})

MK DASS Fund

RSM Fund

Women's Fund

thecentre:mk Fund

NiftyLift Fund

Family Funds

Edward. Hurley Memorial Fund
Grassroots Endowment Fund
Shoosmiths Fund

Stirviving Winter

Open University Fund

Local Giving

New Communities Funds
Jubilee Sports Fund
Community First EMC
Hopkinson Music Fund
Coventry Building Society Fund
VW Fund

Music Centre Fund

Business Leaders Fund

Big Local Conniburrow Funds
Great Linford Waterslide Festival Fund
Prevention of Crime Fund
Rainscourt Fund

Tony Byrne-Financlal Services Fund
Youth Social Action Fund
Bramwell Fund

Chichley Fund

ICAEW Social Mobility Fund
Netherfield Children Centre Legacy Fund
New City Fund

Tampon Tax Fund

National Lottery Fund

Olney Edycation Trust

Beadle Fund

MK Council 2050 Fund
Watercare Fund

TVP -'Violent Crime Reduction
Covid 19 Emergency Response
MK Christian Ceritre Fund
Norman Hawes Memorial Trust

Total restricted funds

Total funds

Net'Current

Assets/ Long Term
Fixed Assets Investments (Liabilities) Liabilities Total
£ £ £ £ £
10,575 2,902,854 (1,041,652) - 1,871,777
36,397,285 - (83,011)  (1,000,000) 35,314,274
36,407,860 - 2,902,854 (1,124,663}  (1,000,000) 37,186,051
- 414,135 (25,945) - 388,190
- - 2,341 - 2,341
- - 356 - 356
- 262,415 24,602 - 287,017
- - 1,013 - 1,013
- 24,897 4,152 - 29,049
- - 4,950 - 4,950
- 35,533 6,072 - 41,605
- 134,416 20,042 - 154,458
- 251,257 11,159 - 262,416
- 793,245 85,470 - 878,715
- - 1,429 - 1,429
- - 28,065 - 28,065
- - 221 - 221
- . 77,502 - 77,502
- - 231,304 - 231,304
- = 4,605 - 4,605
- 10,647,114 956,051 - 11,603,165
- 59,408 6,084 - 65,492
- - 1 - 1
- - 11,391 - 11,391
- - 10,128 - 10,128
- - 14,730 - 14,730
- - 38,933 - 38,933
- 1 38,064 - 38,065
- - 4,441 - 4,441
- - 8,443 - 8,443
- 21,129 13,022 - 34,151
- - 13,273 - 13,273
- - 4,188 - 4,188
- 27,062 11,460 - 38,522
- L. 21,106 - 21,106
- - 1 - 1
- - 5,821 - 5,821
- - 2,015 - 2,015
- - 175,700 - 175,700
- - 6,501 - 6,501
- 44,532 1,232 - 45,764
- - 127,113 - 127,113
- - 6,615 - 6,615
- - 34,500 - 34,500
- - 50,498 - 50,498
- - 28,795 - 28,795
- - 127,000 - 127,000
- 12,715,143 2,194,445 - 14,909,588
1,069,782 (1,000,000) 52,095,639

36,407,860 15,617,997
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19. Accumulated Funds (continued)

19.9 Accumulated Funds - Analysis of
group net assets - prior year

Unrestricted funds
Community
Designated - Property

Total unrestricted funds

Restricted funds

Arts Fund

Sport Relief Fund

Margaret Powell (Grants)

MK DASS Fund

RSM Fund

Women's Fund

thecentre:mk Fund

NiftyLift Fund

Family Funds

Edward Hurley Memorial Fund
Grassroots Endowment Fund
Shoosmiths Fund

Surviving Winter

Open University Fund

Local Giving

New Communities Funds
Jubllee Sports Fund
Community First EMC
Hopkinson Music Fund
Coventry Building Soclety Fund
VW Fund

Music Centre Fund

Business Leaders Fund

Big Local Conniburrow Fund
Great Linford Waterslide Festival Fund
Prevention of Crime Fund
Ralnscourt Fund

Tony Byrné Financlal Services Fund
Youth Sacial Action Fund
Bramwell Fund

Chichley Fund

ICAEW Social Mobility Fund
Netherfield Children Centre Legacy Fund
New City Fund

Tampon Tax Fund

National Lottery Fund

Total restricted funds

Total funds

Net Current

Assets/ Long Term

Fixed Assets Investments {Liabliities) Liabilities Total
£ £ £ £ E
70,213 2,851,126 {77,365) (86,500) 2,757,474
51,278,750 - (171,011)  (1,092,500) 50,015,239
51,348,963 2,851,126 (248,376)  (1,179,000) 52,772,713
- 426,966 (33,503) - 393,463

- - 4,554 - 4,554

- - 43 - 43

- 270,546 21,778 - 292,324

- - 452 - 452

- 25,669 4,433 - 30,102

- - © 5,000 - 5,000

- 36,635 4,571 - 41,206

- 132,767 19,570 - 152,337

- 259,043 11,175 - 270,218

- 817,823 43,554 - 861,377

- - 2,756 - 2,756

N - 30,688 - ‘30,688

- - 221 - 221

- - 91,423 - 91,423

- - 234,524 - 234,524

- - 628 - 628

- 10,905,672 1,079,140 - 11,984,812

- 61,248 3,866 - 65,114

- - 11,064 - 11,064

- - 10,365 - 10,365

- - 10,277 - 10,277

- - 115,867 - 115,867

- 1 1,717 - 1,718

- - 7,224 - 7,224

- - 10,703 - 10,703

- 16,706 9,931 - 26,637

- - 10,173 - 10,173

- - 15,277 - 15,277

- 27,505 7,135 - 34,640

- - 29,912 . 29,912

- - 1 - 1

- - 3,656 - 3,656

- - 212,000 - 212,000

- 12,980,581 1,980,175 - 14,960,756
51,348,963 15,831,707 1,731,799 (1,179,000) 67,733,469
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20. Grants made

Analysis of grants made Unrestricted Restricted Big Local
Funds Funds  Conniburrow  Locai Giving Total
£ £ £ £ £
Voluntary groups and charities 136,799 650,868 76,934 272,617 1,137,218
Indi_v'iduals' 2,000 9,000 - - 11,000
Total 138,799 659,868 76,934 272,617 1,148,218
A complete list of all grant recipients for the year can be found on our website
Reconciliation of grants payable 2020 2019
£ £
Grdnts to Voluntary Groups and Charities 787,667 722,849
Grants through Local Giving 272,617 281,237
Big Local Conniburrow Project 76,934 164,646
Grants to Individuals 11,000 8,000
Total grants awarded 1,148,218 1,176,732
Commitments-at 1 April 376,999 340,769
Commitments made in the year 1,165,462 1,186,416
Grants cancelled or recovered (17,244) {9,684)
Grants payable for the year 1,148,218 1,176,732
Grants pald during the year (1,189,113) {1,140,502)
79% #
Commitments at 31 March 336,104 376,999
Commitments at 31 March are payable as
follows
Within one year 336,104 290,499
After one year - 86,500
336,104 376,999
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21. Reconciliation of net movement in funds to net cash used in operating activitites

2020 2019

£ £

Net movement in funds 309,577 5,652,280
Depreciation and amortisation charges 64,184 ‘60,132
Loss an disposal of tangible fixed assets (244) 409,500
(Gains) on listed investments and investment properties (312,686) {6,055,270)
Dividends and interest from investments {579,595) {533,737)
(Increase) in debtors 17,769 (278,265)
Increase in creditors (172,554) 223,936
Net cash used in operating activities ‘ ‘ ) (673',549) (521,424)

22, Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of the group's and the charitable company's financial instruments at 31 March were:

Group
2020 2019
£ £

Financial assets .
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost 847,820 - 828,959
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss 15,253,352 15,868,159
Total 16,101,172 16,697,118
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost 1,822,299 2,038,798
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